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Commissioner

Katja S. Foa
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

July 19, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, Ne\w Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract, which was originally
competitively bid, with Foundation for Healthy Communities (VC#154533-8001). Concord, NH to
add funding to continue to administer targeted Flexible Needs funding and manage the
acquisition and provision of fund-specific supports and services for the NH Doorway System,
by increasing the price limitation by $355,000 from $1,710,000 to $2,065,000 with no change to
the contract completion date of September 29, 2024, effective upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on December 20,2023, Item
#28.

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES,
SOR GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500589
Welfare

Assistance
92057062

$1,140,000 $155,000 $1,295,000

2025 074-500589
Welfare

Assistance
92057062

$570,000 $(155,000) $415,000

2025 074-500589
Welfare

Assistance
92057060

$0 $355,000 $355,000

Subtotal $1,710,000 $355,000 $2,065,000

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department Is increasing the price limitation by
more than 10% of the original contract. The budget that was developed for this contract was based
on the previous 12 months of Doorways* spend of these funds. After review of the current
spending trends, It was determined by the Department the current and projected spend was
higher than previously anticipated due to higher utilization of recovery housing and transportation
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

services for previously established Doorway clients who are continuing to be engaged with
services, as well as additional allowable expenses, such as medications and out-of-pocket
expenses not covered by insurance or for those who are uninsured. This amendment will add
funds for State Fiscal Year 2025 to account for the higher projected spend.

The purpose of this request is to add funding to administer targeted Flexible Needs funding
and manage the acquisition and provision of fund-specific supports and services for the NH
Doorway System Flexible needs funds provide assistance to individuals with Opiold and/or
Stimulant Use Disorder to support services not otherwise covered through another payer source,
such as temporary housing, transportation, and childcare In order to review barriers to treatment
and recovery services.

Approximately 1,500 individuals will be served through September 29, 2024.

The Department will continue to monitor contract deliverables through monthly program
monitoring meetings and data and fiscal reviews to ensure program integrity and sustainability.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request individuals with a clinically
diagnosed Opiold and/or Stimulant Use Disorder may not have access to emergent needs,
supports, and services, therefore increasing barriers to care, including access to treatment and
recovery supports.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federai Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.788, FAIN #H79TI085759.

iger available. General F

Respectfully submitted,

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Lon A. eaver

Commissioner

Tht Departmtnl of Health and Human Seroicea' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access; 1-800-735-2964

www.iih.gov/doit

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

July 19,2024

Lcri A. Weaver, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Weaver:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract amendment with Foundation for Healthy
Communities, as described below and referenced as DolT No. 2024-048A.

The purpose of this request is to administer targeted Flexible Needs funding and manage the
acquisition and provision of fund-specific supports and services for the NH Doorway System.

The Total Price Limitation shall increase by $355,000 for a New Total Price Limitation of

$2,065,000 effective upon Governor and Council with no change to the end date of
September 29, 2024.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/jd
DolT f#2024-048A

cc: Ken Gagne, IT Manager, DolT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Flexible Needs Funds Administration and Service Acquisition for NH Doorways
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Foundation for Healthy Communities ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on December 20. 2023 (Item #28), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,065,000

2. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-1, Budget - Amendment
#1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Foundation for Healthy Communities A-S-1.3 7/24/2024
RFP-2024-DBH-02-FLEXI-01-A01 Page 1 of 3
V. 7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

7/24/2024

Date

OocuSioiMd by;

S.

-goaoowa6O8O0M0<C««a„

Name:Katja s. fox

Director

7/24/2024

Date

Foundation for Healthy Communities

-0bcuSign*4 by:

Name; Peter Ames

Title:
Executive Director

Foundation for Healthy Communities

RFP-2024-DBH-02-FLEXI-01-A01

V. 7.12.23

A.S-1.3

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuSisiMd by:

7/25/2024

Date Name:Robyn Cuarino

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Foundation for Healthy Communities A-S-1.3

RFP-2024-DBH-02-FLEXI-01-A01 Page 3 of 3
V. 7.12.23
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E)diibit C-1 Budget - Amendment #1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Foundation for Healthy Communities

Budget Request for: Flexible Needs Funds Administration

Budget Period; 1/1/24-9/29/24

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 5.98%

Line Item

'  : >i •= • •• •

Program Cost • Funded
byDHHS-SFY24

•  - ' !•" "

Program Cost • Funded

byDHHS.SFY25 .

1. Salary &Waqes $14,949 $10,000

2. Frinae Benefits $5,200 $3,000

3. Consultants $0 $0

4. Equipment
indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2
CFR 200.1 and Aooendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0 $0

6. Travel $0 $250

7.^ Software $0 $193

8. (a) Other - Marketinq/Communications $0 $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Traininq $0 $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0 $0

Other (Audit Costs) $5,000 $0

Other (Subcontracts) $112,500 $41,500

Other (Office suoDlies) $0 $40

Other (Telephone) $0 $110

Other (Office rent) $0 $350

Other (please specifv) $0 - $0

Other (please specifv) $0 $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $1,089,169 $668,257

Total Direct Costs $1,226,818 $723,700

Total Indirect Costs $68,182 $46,300

Subtotals $1,295,000 $770,000
' TOTAL $2,065,000|

RFP-2024.DBH-02-FLEXI-01-A01

Ccxitractor Initial;
..

7/24/2024

Date:
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY

COMMUNITIES is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on October 28,

1968.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63943

Certificate Number: 0006584095

Sa.

©

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 23rd day of February A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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Fbimdation for
Healthy Communities

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

I, Stenhen Ahnen. of the Foundation for Healthy^ Communities, do hCTeby certify that:

1. I am the duly elected Secretarv/Treasurer of the Foundation for Healthy Communities:

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted by action of unanimous consent

of the Board.of Directors of the Foundation Healthy Communities^ duly adopted on October

18.2021:

RESOLVED: That this corporation, the Foundation for Healthy Communities, enters into any and all
contracts, amendments, renewals, revisions or modifications thereto, with the State of New Hampshire,
acting through its Department of Health and Human Services.

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director or the Vice President of Quality Improvement or the
Secretary / Treasurer for the Foundation for Healthy Communities are hereby authorized on behalf of
this corporation to enter into said contracts with the State, and to execute any and all documents,
agreements, and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she
may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate. Peter Ames is the duly appointed Executive Director
and Kristine Hering is the duly appointed Vice President of Quality Improvement and Stephen Ahnen
is the duly appointed Secretary/Treasurer of the corporation.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force
and effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is

,  attached. This authority remains valid for thirty (30) days fiom the date of this Certificate
of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely
on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent
that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in
contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Secretary/Treasurer of the

Foundation for Healthv Communities this 23^ dav of Julv 2024.

BERM
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NEWHAMP-02

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

BLAMBERTI

DATE (MM/OOnrYYY)

5/31/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BYTHEPOUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or t>e endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and condltions.of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER License #1780862
HUB International New England
275 US Route 1
Cumberland Foreslde, ME 04110

cj^{J;act Gabe Relssman
PHONE FAX
(MC, No, Ext): (A/C.No);

gabe.relssman@hublnternational.com

INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICF

INSURER A; Hartford Casuattv Insurance Comoanv 29424

IKSURED .. .
New Hampshire Hospital Assoc.
The Foundation for Healthy Communities
Attn: Linda Levesque
125 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

INSURER a :Twln Citv Fire Insurance Comoanv 29459

INSURER C :

INSURER n :

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY "mAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT \MTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

AOOL

INFD
SUBR
wvn POUCY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DOnrVYYI

POUCY EXP
iMM/nnrYYYYi UMRS

A X COMMERCaALGEJIERAL UABIUTY

« 1 X 1 OCCUR X 08SBAVW2923 6/22/2024 6/22/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE
,  1,000,000

CLAIMS4>IA£
DAMAGE TO RENTED s  300,000

MED EXP (Anv one oerton)
j  10,000

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY
J  1,000,000

GEN-L AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE
J  2,000,000

poucyI L—Jloc
OTHER-

PR001X:TS - COMP/OP AGG
,  2,000,000

s

AU1OMOBILE LIABIUTY

ANY AUTO

HEDULED
rros

fPom?

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
iEucddenii

BODILY INJURY (Per oertonl

5

S

OWWED
AUTOS ONLY

mONLY

SC
Al BODILY INJURY (Per ecddenti s

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per aebd^l s

s

A X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LWB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE X 08SBAVW2923 6/22/2024 6/22/2025

EACH OCCURRFNCF
,  2,000,000

AGGREGATE
2  2,000,000

060 X RETENTIONS 10,000
B WORKERS COMPENSAnON

AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY ^^
ANY PROPRIETORff»ARTNEIVeXECUTIVE | 1

LJ
11 yet, describe under
(Description of operations below

N/A

08WECIV5293 6/22/2024 6/22/2025

PER OTH-
.statutf fr

E.L. EACH ACODENT
j  500,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
j  500,000

EL DISEASE - POUCY UMIT
,  500,000

DESCRIPnON OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCAnONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddtUOMi RamtHu SclMduto, ray b* «ttaclwd If mon spae* it rtqutrtd)

Foundation for Healthy Communities Is considered a Named Insured for the above mentioned policies.

State of NH

Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) ® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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l^'oundation for□ Healthy Communities

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Mission Statement

To build healthier communities for all by leading

partnerships, fostering collaboration, and
creating innovative solutions to advance health
and health care.
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1^ BerryDunn

Foundation for
Healthy Communities

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

and

FEDERAL REPORTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH UNIFORM GUIDANCE

December 31, 2023 and 2022

With Independent Auditor's Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Foundation for Healthy Communities
(Foundation), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31. 2023 and 2022,
and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Foundation as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (U.S. GAAR).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards (U.S. GAAS),
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be independent of the Foundation and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Foundation has adopted Financial Accounting
Standards Board Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments Credit Losses
{Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, and related guidance, during the
year ended December 31, 2023. Our opinion is not modified with respect to that matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with U.S. GAAP; and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation's ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona • Puerto Rico

berrydunn.com
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Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities
Page 2

Auditor's ResponslbUlties for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in' accordance with U.S. GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,

individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with U.S. GAAS. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole. - • -
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Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities
Page 3

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 29,
2024 on our consideration of the Foundation's Internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of Internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

f

Manchester, New Hampshire
April 29, 2024
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2023 and 2022

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Current portion of grants receivable
Due from affiliate

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Grants receivable, net
Investments

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related amounts
Due to affiliate

Deferred revenue '

Total current liabilities and total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

Operating
Internally designated

Total without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2023 2022

$  1,565,687 $
1,209,450

41,927

10.006

2,827,070

450,000
1.084.967

663,411
1,088,060

128,130

10.450

1,890,051

894.462

$  4.362.037 $ 2.784.513

826,536 $ 625,901
115,328
106,658
20.324

1.068.846

1,516,413
453.978

1,970,391
1.322.800

3.293.191

114,792
63,984
8.943

813.620

1,117,847

586.160

1,704,007
266.886

1.970.893

$  4.362.037 $ 2.784.513

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-4-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statement of Activities and Changes In Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2023

Without Donor Restrictions

Revenues

Foundation support
Program services
Seminars, meetings and
workshops

Interest and dividend income

Gifts and donations

Grant support
Net assets released from

restrictions

Net assets released from

intemally designated

Total revenues

Expenses
Salaries, taxes and benefits
Other operating
Program services
Seminars, meetings and
workshops

Total expenses

Change in net assets from
operations

Net realized and unrealized gain
on investments

Total change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Internally
Operating Designated

$  503,121 $
6,089,144

Total

With Donor

Restrictions

503.121 $
6,089,144

Total

$  503,121
6,089,144

232,583

34,870
195,839

232,583

34,870

195,839

1,706,684

232,583
34,870
195,839

1,706,684

650,770 - 650,770 (650,770) -

328.021 f328.021^

7.838.509 n32.182) 7.706.327 1.055.914 8.762.241

1,858,886
158,890

5,328,029

-

1,858,886
158,890

5,328,029

-

1,858,886
158,890

5,328,029

255.471 255.471 255.471

7.601.276 7.601.276 7.601.276

237,233 (132,182) 105,051 1,055,914 1,160,965

161.333 161.333 161.333

398,566 (132,182) 266,384 1,055,914 1,322,298

1.117.847 586.160 1.704.007 266.886 1.970.893

;  1.516.413 $ 453.978 $ 1.970.391 $ 1.322.800 $ 3.293.191

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2022

Without Donor Restrictions

Revenues

Foundation support
Program services
Seminars, meetings and
workshops

interest and dividend income

Gifts and donations

Grant support
Net assets released from

restrictions

Net assets transferred from

operating to internally
designated

Net assets released from

internally designated

Total revenues

Expenses
Salaries, taxes and benefits

Other operating
Program services
Seminars, meetings and
workshops

Total expenses

Change in net assets from
operations

Net realized and unrealized loss on

investments

Total change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Internally
OperatinQ Designated

$  503,121 $
13,480.749

181,004
19,612

113 57,775

Total

With Donor

Restrictions

$  503,121 $
13,480,749

181,004
19,612

57,888

Total

$  503,121
13.480,749

181,004
19,612
57,888

- - - 442,670 442,670

366,343 - 366,343 (366,343) -

(326,600) 326,600 - - -

177.531 n77.5311 _ _ _

14.401.873 206.844 14.608.717 76.327 14.685.044

1,729,628
137,467

12,125,075

-

1,729,628
137,467

12,125,075

-

1,729,628
137,467

12,125,075

231.498 231.498 231.498

14.223.668 14.223.668 14.223.668

178,205 206,844 385,049 76,327 461,376

f197.8701 f197.8701 f197.8701

(19,665) 206,844 187,179 76,327 263,506

1.137.512 379.316 1.516.828 190.559 1.707.387

I  1.117.847 $ 586.160 $  1.704.007 $ 266.886 $  1.970.893

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-6-



Docusign Envelope ID; 02812FC9-F895-4D98-A90A-36E2D8A133EF

FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities
Net realized and unrealized (gain) toss on investments
Change in operating assets and liabilities

Grants receivable

Due from affiliate

Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related amounts
Due to affiliate

Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Net purchases of investments

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$  1,322,298 $ 263,506

(161,333)

(571,390)
86,203

444

200,635
536

42,674
11.381

931,448

(29.172)

902,276

663.411

197.870

(893,427)
13,005

200

602,906

4,891

(34,385)
M67)

154,399

(9.655)

144,744

518.667

$  1.565.687 $ 663.411

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2023 and 2022

Organization

Foundation for Healthy Communities (Foundation) was formed to create- partnerships that improve
health and health care for all throughout the state by focusing on a number of initiatives, such as quality
and patient safety, substance use, behavioral health and diversity, equity and inclusion. The
Foundation is controlled by New Hampshire Hospital Association (Association) whose purpose is to
assist its members in improving the health status of the people receiving healthcare in New Hampshire.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Recently Adopted Accounting Principle

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update No.
2016-13, Financial Instruments Credit Losses {Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on
Financial Instruments, and related guidance as amended, which replaces the incurred loss
methodology with an expected loss methodology that is referred to as the current expected credit
loss (CECL) methodology. The measurement of expected credit losses under the CECL
methodology is applicable to financial assets measured at amortized cost, including loan
receivables and held-to-maturity debt securities. It also applies to off-balance sheet credit
exposures not accounted for as insurance (loan commitments, standby letters of credit, financial
guarantees, and other similar instruments) and net investments in leases recognized by a lessor in
accordance with Topic 842 on leases. In addition, Topic 326 made changes to the accounting for
available-for-sale debt securities. One such change is to require credit losses to be presented as
an allowance rather than as a writedown on available-for-sale debt securities management does
not intend to sell or believes that it Is more likely than not they will be required to sell. The adoption
of Topic 326 during the year ended December 31, 2023 did not have a material impact on the
financial statements of the Foundation since there are no financial assets that are measured at

amortized cost.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified as follows based on
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Foundation. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Foundation's management
and the Board of Trustees.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2023 and 2022

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Foundation or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. At December
31. 2023 and 2022, the Foundation did not have any funds to be maintained in perpetuity.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting in the statements of cash flows, the Foundation considers all bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

From time-to-time, the Foundation's total cash deposits exceed the federally insured limit. The
Foundation has not incurred any losses and does not expect any in the future.

Investments

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt
securities are measured at fair value in the statements of financial position. Interest and dividends
are included in the changes in net assets from operations.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments will
occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the
statements of financial position.

Emolovee Fringe Benefits

The Foundation has an "earned time" plan under which each employee earns paid leave for each
period worked. These hours of paid leave may be used for vacation or illnesses. Hours eamed but
not used are vested with the employee and may not exceed 30 days at year-end. The Foundation
accrues a liability for such paid leave as it is earned.

Grants and Contributions

Grants awarded and contributions received in advance of expenditures are reported as support
with donor restrictions if they are received with stipulations that limit the use of the grants or
contributions. When a grant or contribution restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are
reclasslfied to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities and
changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. If there are unused grant funds at
the time the grant restrictions expire, management seeks authorization from the grantor to retain
the unused grant funds to be used for other unspecified projects. If the Foundation receives
authorization from the grantor, then the Board of Trustees or management internally designates
the use of those funds for future projects. These amounts are released from net assets with donor
restrictions to internally designated net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the
statements of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.

-9-



Docusign Envelope ID; 02812FC9-F895-4D98^90A.36E2O8A133EF

FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2023 and 2022

Grant funds conditional upon submission of documentation of qualifying expenditures or matching
requirements are deemed to be earned and reported as revenues when the Foundation has met
the grant conditions.

The amount of such funds the Foundation will ultimately receive depends on the actual scope of
each program, as well as the availability of funds. The ultimate disposition of grant funds is subject
to audit by the awarding agencies.

Grant funds awarded for which restrictions have been met in the year of award are reported in the
statements of activities and changes in net assets in program services revenues.

Contributions of long-lived assets are reported as support for net assets without donor restrictions
unless donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets
with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash of other assets
that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as support with donor restrictions.
Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long these long-lived assets must be maintained, the
Foundation reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived assets
are placed in service.

Change in Net Assets from Operations

The statements of activities and changes in net assets includes a measure of change in net assets
from operations. Changes in net assets which are excluded from this measure consist of the
realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments.

Income Taxes

The Foundation is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code (Code) and is exempt from income taxes on related income pursuant to Section
501(a) of the Code.

Subseauent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, the
Foundation has considered transactions or events occurring through April 29, 2024, which was the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued.

2. Avallabllitv and Liguidltv of Financial Assets

The Foundation regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to optimize the investment of its available funds.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month
period, the Foundation considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities and general and
administration, as well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be
general expenditures.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2023 and 2022

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the
Foundation operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover
general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources.

The following financial assets could readily be available within one year of the statements of
financial position date to meet general expenditure at December 31:

2023 2022

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,565,687 $ 663,411
Grants receivable 1,659,450 1,088,060
Due from affiliate 41,927 128,130
Investments 1,084,967 894,462
Internally designated funds (453,978) (586,160)
Donor restricted funds f1.322.800) (266.886)

Financial assets available at year end for current
use to meet general expenditures $ 2.575.253 $ 1.921.017

At December 31, 2023 and 2022, internally designated net assets represent unused grant funds to
be used for other unspecified projects by management over the next 12 months. The internally
designated net assets are included in cash and cash equivalents and grants receivable.

3. Investments and Fair Value Measurement

FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements.

FASB ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset
or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the
asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date.
FASB ASC Topic 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize
the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair
value.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2023 and 2022

The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value;

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for Identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs
that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The Foundation's investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and are considered
Level 1.

The composition of investments as of December 31 is set forth in the following table. Investments
are stated at fair value.

2023 2022

Marketable equity securities $ 202,782 $ 192,586
Mutual funds 882.185 701.876

$ 1.084.967 $ 894.462

4. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions of $1,322,800 and $266,886 consisted of specific grant programs
as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The grant programs relate to improvements to
access and the delivery of healthcare services.

5. Related Partv Transactions

The Foundation leases space from the Association on a month to month basis. Rental expense
under this lease for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 was $55,300 and $48,960,
respectively.

The Association provides various accounting, public relation and janitorial services to the
Foundation. The amount expensed for these sen/ices in 2023 and 2022 was $218,816 and
$194,056, respectively. In addition, the Association bills the Foundation for its allocation of shared
costs. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Foundation owed the Association $106,658 and
$63,984, respectively, for services and products provided by the Association.

The Association owed the Foundation $41,927 and $128,130 as of December 31. 2023 and 2022,
respectively, for support allocated to the Foundation. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022, the Foundation received support from the Association in the amount of $503,121.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2023 and 2022

6. Retirement Plan

The Foundation participates in the Association's 401 (k) profit-sharing plan, which covers
substantially all employees and allows for employee contributions of up to the maximum allowed
under Internal Revenue Sen/ice regulations. Employer contributions are discretionary and are
determined annually by the Foundation. Retirement plan expense for 2023 and 2022 was $62,449
and $48,955, respectively.

7. Functional Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than
one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a reasonable
basis that is consistently applied. The expenses allocated include salaries and related taxes,
allocated based on the estimated time utilized on programs, and insurance and depreciation,
allocated based on the estimated square footage of the total building.

Expenses by function and natural classification are as follows:

2023 2022

Program services
Salaries and related taxes $  1,462,409 $  1,463,174

Office supplies and other 276,918 310,139

Occupancy 51,402 49,075

Subreclpients 2,978,175 6,227,746

Subcontractors 2,111,111 5,606,673

Seminars, meetings and workshops 286,216 266,747

Insurance 3.292 3.407

Total program services 7.169.523 13.926.961

General and administrative

Salaries and related taxes 396,477 266,453

Office supplies and other 5,002 4,221

Occupancy 28,080 23,762

Insurance 2.194 2.271

Total general and administrative 431.753 296.707

$ 7.601.276 $ 14.223.668
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended December 31, 2023

Federal Program

U.S. Department of the Treasury

Direct programs:

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal

Recovery Funds

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Pass-through programs:

State of New Hampshire Department of
Health and Human Services

Immunization Cooperative
Agreements

Small Rural Hospital Improvement
Grant Program

State Rural Hospital Flexibility
Program

National Bioterrorism Hospital
Preparedness Program

The National Cardiovascular Health

Program

Cooperative Agreement to Support
Navigators in Federally-facilitated
exchanges

Epidemiology and Laboratory
Capacity for Infectious Diseases
(ELC)

Federal

AL

Number

21.027

93.268

93.301

93.241

93.889

93.426

93.332

93.323

Pass-Through
Entity

Identifying
Number

Passed

Through to Federal
Subrecioients Exoenditures

$  323.159 $ 1.711.479

05-95-90-

902510-2495

05-95-90-

901010-2219

05-95-90-

902010-2218

6U3REP20064

9-01-00

05-95-90-

902010-1227

NAVACA21040

0-01-00

95-90-903010-

2643

901,191 1,205,515

205,840

45,692

300,162

330,000

148;704

588,230

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Concluded)

Year Ended December 31, 2023

Federal Program

Activities to Support State, Tribal,
Local and Territorial (STLT)
Health Department Response to
Public Health or Healthcare

Crises

Block Grants for Prevention and

Treatment of Substance Abuse

Federal

AL

Number

93.391

Pass-Through
Entity

Identifying
Number

05-95-90-

901010-5771

93.959 Various

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Total expenditures of federal awards

Passed

Through to Federal

Subrecioients Expenditures

739,598

116.993

1.757.782

766,732

307.228

3.898.103

$ 2.080.941 $ 5.609.582

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended December 31, 2023

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (Schedule) includes the federal
grant activity of Foundation for Healthy Communities (Foundation) under programs of the federal
government for the year ended December 31, 2023. The information in the Schedule is presented
in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Because the Schedule presents only a portion of the operations of the Foundation, it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of the
Foundation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported in the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

3. Indirect Cost Rate

The Foundation has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under
the Uniform Guidance.
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Foundation for Healthy Communities
(Foundation), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2023, and the
related statements of activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and

the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 29, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Foundation's
Internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's
Internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees. In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Foundation's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet Important enough to merit attention by those
charged with govemance.

Our consideration of Internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies an therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. We identified a certain, deficiency In internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2023-001 that we consider to be a
material weakness.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West.Virginia • Arizona • Puerto Rico

berrydunn.conn
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Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Foundation's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The Foundation's Response to Findings

Govemment Auditing Standards require the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Organization's
response to the finding identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. The Foundation's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Foundation's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Foundation's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
April 29, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Trustees
Foundation for Healthy Communities

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Foundation for Healthy Communities' (Foundation) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the Office of Management and Budget
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program for
the year ended December 31. 2023. The Foundation's major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Foundation complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program for the
year ended December 31. 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards
(U.S. GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemrhent Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and
the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Foundation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Foundation's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Foundation's federal programs.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massochusetts •.Connecticut • West.Virginio • Arizono • Puerto Rico

berrydunn.com



Docusign Envelope ID; 02812FC9-F895-4D9d-A90A-36E2D8A133EF

Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Foundation's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with U.S. GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above Is considered material If there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about the Foundation's compliance with the requirements of each major federal
program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance. whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Foundation's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of the Foundation's internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on Internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses In
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

-20-
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Board of Trustees

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
April 29, 2024
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended December 31, 2023

Section I. - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not

considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?

Federal Awards

internal control over major programs:
' Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
2CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of Maior Programs

AL Number(s)

93.391

Unmodified

yes

yes

yes

yes

yes

Unmodified

yes

no

none reported

no

no

none reported

no

21.027

Name of Federal Procram or Cluster

Activities to Support State. Tribal. Local and Territorial (STLT)
Health Department Response to Public Health or Healthcare
Crises

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$750,000

yes _ no
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Concluded)

Year Ended December 31, 2023

Section II. - Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Finding Number:

Criteria:

Condition Found:

Cause and Effect;

2023-001

The Foundation is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining
effective internal controls over financial reporting that provide reasonable
assurance that the internal controls will prevent misstatements or detect and
correct misstatements on a timely basis, intentional or unintentional, from
occurring.

During our audit, it was discovered the Foundation had been awarded a
$1,000,000 unconditional grant to be received over five years. The
Foundation recorded the amount received in 2023 as grant support. The
Foundation did not record the remaining future payments expected to be
received as grant support during the year ended December 31, 2023.

Historically, the Foundation has generally received either multi year
conditional grants where the Foundation is required to satisfy certain
conditions in order to receive future funding or one year unconditional grants
that are recorded when received. As such, when this grant was awarded, the
Foundation accounted for the grant in the manner it historically has recorded
its grant funding. As a result, an audit adjustment was recorded for $700,000
to account for the future payments expected to be received in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We recommend the Foundation analyzes all grants awarded to determine
whether or not there are conditions included in the grant agreements that
would limit the Foundation's ability to recognize the full amount of the grant
award.

Views of a Responsible
Official and Corrective

Action Plan: Management agrees with the finding. See attached Corrective Action Plan.

Section III. - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted

Recommendation:
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Year Ended December 31, 2023

Section I. - Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

None noted

Section II. - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted
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Foundation for
Healthy Communities

FINDINGS 2023-001 Corrective Action Plan

Management will implement a process of identifying the provisions, terms and conditions under grant
awards received to determine the proper accounting under U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

Responsible party: Peter Ames
Executive Director

(603)415-4270

Anticipated completion date: January 1, 2024

-25-
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Fbun(ialion/p>;
Hoallhy Communitiee

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 2024

Betsey Rhynhart, Chair

Andrew Watt, MD, Vice Chair

Stephen Ahnen, Secretary/Treasurer

Peter Ames, ex offieio

Vice President, Population Health, Concord Hospital

CMIO, Catholic Medical Center

President, New Hampshire Hospital Association

Executive Director, Foundation for Healthy Communities

Lauren Collins-Cline, Immediate Past Chair Vice President, Mont^e Powers

Deb Broadhead, RN Director, Healthcare Management, Anthem

Cherie Holmes, MD CMO, Cheshire Medical Center

fuad Kahn, MD, MBA Sr. Director of Behavioral and Community H

Sally Kraft, MD

Eileen Liponis

Lisa Madden

Tom Manion

Holly McCormack, DNP

Colin McHugh

Sue Mooney, MD,

Jeremy Roberge, CPA

John Skevington

Susan Walsh

Annette Escalante, MSW, MLADC

Steve Saltzman

Mark Bontca

ealth

Mass General Brigham, Wentworth-Douglass Hospital

Vice President of Population Health, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Health

Executive Director, New Hampshire Food Bank

President and CEO, Riverbend Community Mental Health Center

President and CEO, New London Hospital

CEO, Cottage Hospital

President & CEO, Southern New Hampshire Health

President & CEO, Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital

President & CEO, Huggins Hospital

CEO, Parkland Medical Center

Strategic Business Lead, NH, Harvard Pilgrim Health Care

Director of Substance Use Services, Elliot Health System

President and CEO, NH Community Load Fund

Associate Professor, Health Management and Policy, University of New Hampshire
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Chris Syfnolon

EDUCATION

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

UNIVERSITY

Manchester, NH'

Bachelor of Arts (BA) Management,_
Logistics And Operations

Relevant Coursework

•  Six Sigma White Belt
• QSO 645 Project Management

Professional

ADDITIONAL SKILLS

Relationship Building and Management

Community Development

Community Engagement & Outreach

Project Management

Program Development and Management

Budgeting and Resource Management

Continuous Process Improvement

Advanced MS Office Suite

Proficient in Asana, Smartsheet, Gantt &

Monday.com

CRM Database Management

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

Additional information

Mental Health First Aid Certificate

Flawless Consulting Skills Workshop

Advanced Facilitator Training

Strong strategic planner and client-relationship management

professional. Dedicated to providing stellar customer service and
operational improvements for organizations. Delivers excellence

in meeting business objectives in congruence with fostering
mutually beneficial relationships with stakeholders. Adept in
managing budgets, account management, and goal setting.

Proactive in resolving issues with exceptional organizational and
communication skills. Results oriented professional with strong
leadership and relationship-building skills.

EXPERIENCE

Director, COVID-19 Vaccination Project
Foundation for Healthy Communities, Concord, NH /Apr 2022-
Present

•  Lead statewide project to increase infrastructure and

capacity to administer and reduce access barriers to COVID-
19 vaccinations

•  Manage all administrative tasks, including internal and

external financial and program reporting

•  Establish and maintain relationships and timely
communication with all project stakeholders

•  Monitor participating hospitals implementation plan of

NHIIS and HL7 messaging

SENIOR ACADEMIC COACH

Duet, Boston, MA/Apr 2020 - March 2022

• Cultivated community partners to recruit students from

underserved populations
• Developed and maintained strong relationship with students

to ensure progress to goals
•  Identified barriers and guide students to resolutions and

alternative solutions

• Reviewed aggregate data to identify trends and develop

strategies to move students forward
•  Provided students personalized academic support,

motivation, leadership, and accountability measures

CLIENT SUCCESS MANAGER

Dynamic Benchmarking, Windham, NH/Sep 2019-Apr 2020

•  Implemented process improvement and recommendations

to increase participation and engagement
• Developed strategic study and benchmarking reports
• Developed andjnitiate project plan, timeline, and

communications with new and existing clients
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COMMUNITY PARTNER PROGRAM MANAGER

LRNG Community Impact SNHU, Manchester, NH/Jan 2017 - Jun
2019

• Bill and Melinda Gates Grant coordinator/project manager
•  Fostered sustainable community partnerships from

contracting, program launch, and successful student

outcomes and impact
• Developed detailed account plans, training materials and

professional development for partners

• Trained community partners leadership and staff in the
SNHU CBE/CfA model

•  Identified business needs, requirements, and assessments

of student progress and milestones

• Addressed and resolved technical, financial, and operational
concerns with University's internal stakeholders

• Collaborated with partners to uncover issues, identify

applicable solutions

OFFICE COORDINATOR

College for America, SNHU, Manchester. NH/Jun 2015 - Dec 2016
•  Assist Administrative Manager to develop operational

procedures and aid in creating new processes
•  Responsible for financial budget management

•  Maintain accurate MNDA and SOW records for Contract and

Procurement Department

DISTRICT MANAGER

Girl Scouts of the Green and White Mountain. Bedford, NH/

Mar 2014 - jun 2015

•  Executed membership goal setting, volunteer retention

strategies and long range departmental strategic planning
initiatives

•  Managed all facets of volunteer engagement including
recruitment, intake, placement, training, retention, and
conflict resolution

•  Collected quarterly needs assessments and made
recommendations for strategic planning and direction

TROOP BANKING AND FINANCE VOLUNTEER SUPPORT

MANAGER

Girl Scouts of the Green and White Mountain. Bedford, NH/
Dec 2012-May 2014

COMMUNITY EXECUTIVE DEVELOPMENT

American Cancer Society. Boston, MA /Jul 2011 - Dec 2012

INCOME DEVELOPMENTA/OLUNTEER COORDINATOR

American Cancer Society, Boston, MA / Sep 2009 - Jul 2011
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

Flexible Needs Funds Administration SFY 2024

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Foundation for Healthy Communities

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Chris Symolon
Director. COVIO Vaccination and

Doorways
$14,949.00 $78,409.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

Flexible Needs Funds Administration SFY 2025

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Foundation for Healthy Communities

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Chris Symolon
Director, COVID Vaccination and

Doorways
$10,000.00 $78,409.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00
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CoBioisslOMr

K«4«S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BBHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603:271.9544 I.«0.0S2^>33^ Ext. 9544

Fax:603-2714332 TDD Aecew: l-SOO.735^2964 w^.dhh4.nh.gov

November 30..2023

His Excellency. Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
arxlThe Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to'enter into a contract with. Foundation for Healthy Communities (VC#154533-8001), Concord.
NH, in the amount of $1,716,000'to administer targeti^ Flexible Needs funding and manage the
acquisition and^ovlsion of fund-specific supports and services for the NH Doorway System, with
the option to renew for up to four (4) additional years, effective upon Govemor and Council
approval through September 29. 2024.100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, with
the authority to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation arid encurnbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
05-95-92-920S10-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT.
HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, SOR GRANT

State

Fiscal Year

Class /
Account

ClassTftte Job Number Total Amount

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057062 $1,140,000

2025 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057062 ■ $570,000

Total: $1,710,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is to assist the NH Doorway System wUh the management
and oversight of targeted Flexible Needs funding that provides financial assistance, as a payor of
last resort, to eligible individuals for emergent needs and supports services riot otherwi^ covered
through another payor source. This funding removes barriers to care that often prevent iridivlduals
In New Hampshire from accessing needed services and supports. The Contractor will ensure
these targeted funds are administered directly to the Doorways, are being utilized properly, and
that supports and services are being provided as needed, in a timely and efficient manner.

Approximately 9,000 Individuals will be served through September 29, 2024.

The Contractor vrill administer, disburse, and monitor expenditures for emergent needs;
coordinate the acquisition of supports and services; and manage the provision of services to
Individuals, as identified, authorized, and requested by the Doorways. Supports and services



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu ̂
artd the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2 •

managed through this agreement include transportation to and from recovery-related
appointments and programs; chiklcare that permits individuals to attend recovery-related
appointments and programs; costs necessary to remove financial barriers to obtaining and
retaining safe housing; and other services and supports as authorized by the Dobnway and
approv^ by the Department. '

The Doorvyay System is comprised of nine (9) organizations that provide Immediate
screening and evidenced based assessments to determine the proper level of care for Individuals,
maintain mechanisms to Immediately transport individuals to safe housing while awaiting
treatment, and administer, facilitated referrals and case management for all seeking eervices to
properly navigate the prevention, treatment, and recovery system.

The Department will monitor through monthly program monitoring meetings, data and
fiscal reviews, to ensure program sustainabiiity and ongoing access to vulnerable populations.

The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from July 21, 2023
through August 25. 2023. The Department received one (1) response that was reviewed and
scored by a team of qualified Individuals. The Scoring Sheet Is attached.

The Contractor's proposed cost was based on estimates lower than actual historic
utilization of this Flexible Needs funding across the nine (9) Doorways. Price limitation was
therefore adjusted to more accurately reflect actual historic utilization for this funding.

As referenced In Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, Section 1..
Revistons to Form P-37. Geheral Provisions, of the attached agreement, the parties have the
option to extend the ̂ reement for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactoiy
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council
approval.

Should the Governor and"Council not authorize this request individuals with a clinically
diagnosed Opioid and/or Stimulant Use Disorder may not have access to emergent needs,
supports, and services, therefore increasing barriers to care, including access to treatment and
recovery supports.

Area served: Statewide.

. Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.788, FAIN #H79TI085759.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds w/ill not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lorl A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Deparlnxent of Health and Humon Services' Mission is to join comniunilies and families
in providing opportunities for citixens to achieve heallh and independenct



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID# ■RFP-2024-DBH-02-FLEXI I'C- ' ' > ^

'Flexible Needs Funds

Project Title Acquisition
Administration and * ' •T>; '

Maximum

Poirrts

Available

'•sis ,••• • . .
f* ' ' ''K* .

Foundation for Healthy
Connmunities

Techhicairv* •- i- .r--'..s ?

(Qi) Doorway Knowledge and
Experience ' •. 50 . * 37
(02} Communication ar>d • • •.
CJollabcfation Plan " •  -ISO 115

(03) Resource.Knowledge
"•V

•. 50 - - 37

(04) FNF Services Plan IM 115

(05) Cultural Competencv 25 - 15
(06) Fund Management and '
Administration 150 - 100

(07) Capacity, Staffing, COOP ; 'l25 "95

Sutitotal • Technical 700 514

If a Vendor fail to achieve 400 minimum points in the preliminary
scoring, It viHIl receive no further consideration from the evaluation
team and the Vendor's Cost Proposal will remain unopened.

.  iijfe?
Vendor Cost'

» *■

150 160

Vendor Budget Evaluation •Viso . * 100

' Subtotal - Cost 300 250 '

TOTAL POINTS 1000 764

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST : . $1,000,000 . '.r

Reviewer Name

1
Amanda Spreeman

^ Paul Kierhan

^ Jennifer Sabin

^ Kassandra Martin

5 Mike Walsh

Title

■SCR Contracts and
•Program Manager (.
iSOR Project Coordinator

■SOR Director

SORAnalyst' .

■Administrator
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENl- OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

wvm.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet ' .

Commissioner . • •

November 22,2023

Lori Weaver, Commissioner ^

Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
95 Pleas^t Street

Concord. NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Weaver:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technolo^ (DoIT)
has approved your ageiicy's request to enter into a contract with Foundation for Healthy Communities, as
described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2024-048.

The purpose of this request is to assist the NH Doorway System through the management
and oversight oftargeted'ftinding that provides financial assistance, as a payor of last resort,
to eligible individuals for emergent needs that support services not otherwise covered
through another payor source; thereby removing barriers to care that often prevent people
in New Hampshire from accessing needed services and supports. •

The Total Price Limitation will be $1,710,000, effective upon Governor and Council
approval through September 29,2024.

A copy of diis letter must accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' submission
to the'Governor and Ex^utive Council for approval.

■ Sincerely,

Denis Gotilet

DG/RA

DoIT #2024-048

cc: Mike Williams, IT Manager

"Innovative Technoiogies Todayfor New Hampshire's Tomorrow"
Ir
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Subject Flexible Needs Funds Administration and Service Acquisition for NH Doorways (RFP-2024-DBH-02-FL ..

>

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and .
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract

AGREEMENT

The State ofNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Narne

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Foiindation for Healthy Communities

1.4 Contractor Address

125 Airport Road, Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-225-0900

1.6 Ac^unt Unit and Class

05-95-92-920510-70400000

1.7 Completion Date

September 29; 2024

1.8 Price Llmitatipn

$1,710,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Con^tor Signature . 11/30/2023
DoeuSlgRtd bjr:

r

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Peter Ames

Executive Director

1.13 Siafe'Xgency"Signanire _ 12/4/2023
DoeuSisiwd l>y:

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Katja S.. FOX

Di rector ^

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel /^ap/?//caWe/

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

1.17 Approva(l)yT!fie^?)vgmor and Executive Council 0/applicable)

G&C Item number: G«fcC Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Contractor Initials
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ta
Date 11/30/2023
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.l
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor")
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described In the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
C'Seivices").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Exccutive Council

approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by.the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 -
("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement docs not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
Incurred or Services performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations Qf the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued oppropriation of funds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 In the event funds

in that Account'are reduced or unavailable.

. 5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contraiy, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the-
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in'the performance

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation tp the
Contractor for the Services.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agremcnt shall be limited to
monetary damages hot to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right lb specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

.6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state,' county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor's order pn Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applic^ts for employment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious .creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take afflrmaiive
-action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law.. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be.
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
tlie purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to pcifonn the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all Applicable laws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to this
Agreement

Page 2 of4
Contractor Initials

ua

TA
Daiel37W2023



DocuSign Envelope ID: AC8CBF35-596»-4F98-8390-0FF8FEEE3A6F

8. EVENT pF DEFAULT/REMEDIES. .
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"): •
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, of all, of the following afctions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying" the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of DefiiuU is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State detemiines that

the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor,
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or bolh.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to.the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the Slate's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at the Slate's
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.
10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictoria! rcproduction.s, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.

10.2 AH-data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with fiinds provided for that purpose iindcr this
A^eement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned
to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason.
10.3 Disclosure of data, .information and other records shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

n. COm-RACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive
any benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegatiott, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with Its affiliates,.becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity Interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.
12.4 The State is entitled to copies of. all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICA'TION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, < damages,- demands,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses,, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the' Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's

sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination
of this Agreement.
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14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insiu^ce against all claims of
• bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approv^ for use in the State of-
Ncw Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensesd in the State of New Hampshire.

14.3 .The Contractor shall furnish to Ac Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a certlficate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under Ais Agreement. At Ae
request of Ae Contracting OfTiccf, or any successor, Ae Contractor
shall provide ccrtificatc(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under Ais AgrecmenL The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals Aereof shall, be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing Ais agreement, Ae Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that Ae Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 28I-A f'tyo/Aers"
Compensation"). •
15.2 To the extent Ae Contractor is subject to Ae requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 28I-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers' Compensation in connection wiA activities which Ac
person proposes to undertake pursuant to Ais Agreement. The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof .of Workers' Compensation in Ae
mariner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workera' Compensation premiums or for any cAer claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection wiA Ae
performance of Ae Services under Ais Agreement,

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of Ais Agreement
shall not act as a waiverof the right of Ae State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any oAcr or any subsequent breach.

18. AMENDMENT. .This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by Ae parties
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by Ae Governor and Executive Council of Ae State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under Ac
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE.OF LAW AND FORUM.
19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, mterpreted and construed
in accordance wtA Ae laws of Ac State of New Hampshire except
where Ae Federal supremacy clause requires oAerwise. The
wording used in Ais Agreement Is Ae wording chosen by Ae
parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising out of Ais Agreement, including Ae
brMch or alleged breach Aereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in Ae
Menimack County Superior CoiJrt of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction Aereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In Ae event of a conflict between

Ac terras of this P-37 foiTn (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of Ais Agreement including any attachments Aereto,
Ae terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for
Ae sole benefit of Ae parties hereto, and noAing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings AroughoutAe Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and Ae words contained therein shall in
no way be , held to explain, modify, amplify or aid. in Ac
interpretation, construction or meaning of Ae provisions of Ais
Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. AddiUonal or modifying"
provisions set forA m Ae attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along wiA its •
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such furAer actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out Ae provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to Ae transactions contemplated hereby.

J■

25. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of Ae provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remainmg provisions of
Ais Agreement will remain in full force and effect

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to Ac oAcr party shall 26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
mailing by certified mail, posAge prepaid, in a United States Post deemed an original, constitutes Ae entire agreement and
Office addressed to Ae parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2 understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
and 1.4, herein. agreements andnndersAndiogs wiA respect to the subject matter

hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Flexible Needs Funds Administration and Service Acquisition for NH Doorways

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, Is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Govemor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.5 as follows:

12.5. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall,
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for

, under . this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

RFP-2O23-D0H-O2-FLEX1-O1
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New Hampshire Department of.Health and Human Services
Flexible Needs Funds Administration and Service Acquisition for NH Doorways

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must administer targeted, Flexible Needs Funding (FNF) and
manage the acquisition and provision of FNF supports and services for the
New Hampshire (NH) Doorway Contractors ("Doorways), as identified by the
Department.

1.2. The Contractor must ensure services are available statewide, 24.hours per day,
, seven (7) days per week.

.  1.3. -FNF Supports and Services ■ .

1.3.1. The Contractor must develop and maintain a process to communicate
and collaborate with each of the nine (9) Doonways, as identified by
the Department, to receive and respond to requests for FNF supports
and services;

1.3.2. The Contractor must utilize a NH-based community engagement
team to identify, engage, select, and negotiate with community-based
organizations to ensure FNF supports and services are available,
accessible, and consistent with prioritized individual needs. The
Contractor must:

1.3.2.1. Ensure participation of a minimum of ten'(10) FNF service
providers within 30 calendar days of the contract effective
date; .

1.3.2.2. Approach additional FNF service providers throughout the
entire term of this Agreement to participate in the program,
based on:

1.3.2.2.1. Geographical location of service and supports
needs:

1.3.2.2.2. Gaps in service availability; -

1.3.2.2.3. Efficiency and effectiveness; and

1.3.2.2.4. The providers' capacity to serve with approved
FNF services and supports.

1.3.2.3: Develop additional metrics in collaboration' with the
Department, within 30 calendar days of the • contract
effective date.

• 1.3.3. . The Contractor must work with community-based organizations to
overcome barriers to participation in the Contractor's FNF program
structure and provide ongoing training and support for participation.

■ Topics must be developed in collaboration with the Department.

RFP-2024-DBH-02-FLEXI-01 B-2.0 Contractorlnltials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Flexible Needs Funds Administration and Service Acquisition for NH Doorways

EXHIBIT B

1.3.4. The Contractor must facilitate the acquisition and provision of FNF
supports and services to eligible individuals as identified, authorized,
and requested by the Doorways,.and with Department approval as
needed. Eligible individuals are residents of NH who:

1.3.4.1. Are experiencing homelessness In NH;

1.3.4.2. Meet the -Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders, Fifth Edition (DSM-5) criteria for an Opioid Use
Disorder (OUD) and/or Stimulant Use Disorder (StimUD) as
determined by a:

1.3.4.2.1. Licensed counselor; or

1.3.4.2.2. Unlicensed counselor who:

1.3.4.2.2.1. Is under the supen/islon of a
licensed counselor;

1.3.4.2.2.2. Is working toward licensure; and

1.3.4.2.2.3. Has- completed the required
coursework for licensure, ■ as
required by:

1.3.4.2.2.3.1. NH Board of Alcohol

.  ' and Other Drug Use
Providers;

1.3.4.2.2.3.2. NH Board of Mental

Health Practice; or

.  . 1.3.4.2.2.3.3. NH Board of

Psychology.

1.3.5. The Contractor must ensure the acquisition and provision of FNF
supports and services begins immediately following the request for
services, unless otherwise requested by the Doorway, per the specific
needs of an individual or availability of service provider.

1.3.6. The Contractor must collaborate with each Doorway to ensure FNF
supports and services that are not Included in the Contractor's FNF
service and supports structure are:

1.3.6.1. Acquired by the requesting Doonvay; and

1.3.6.2. Tracked and recorded by the Contractor.

1.3.7. The Contractor must ensure available FNF supports and services
include:

1.3.7.1. Transportation for eligible individuals to and from recovery-
related medical appointments, treatment progra|ifis^pd

RFP-2024-DBH-02-FLEXI-01 B.2.0 Contractor liiilials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Flexible Needs Funds Administration and Service Acquisition for NH Doorways

EXHIBIT B

other locations that assist the individual with recovery.

1.3.7.2. Childcare that permits an eligible individual, who is a parent
or caregiver. to attend recovery-related medical
appointments, treatment programs, and other
appointments;

1.3.7.3. Payment of short-term housing costs or other costs
necessary to remove financial bam'ers to obtaining or
retaining safe housing, including, but not limited to;

\

1.3.7.3.1; Assisting individuals in need of respite shelter
resources while awaiting treatment and recovery
services.

1.3.7.3.2. Resources for individuals while awaiting
treatment and recovery services when care is not
yet available, including, but not limited to:

1.3.7.3.2.1. Rental payments.

1.3.7.3.2.2. Utility payments.

1.3.7.3.2.3. Recovery housing provided by
recovery residences that are
located and certified.In-NH to meet

■National Alliance for Recovery -
Residences standards and are

-  _ . listed on the New Hampshire ■
Recovery House Registry in
accordance with current NH

^  Administrative Rules.

1.3.7.3.3. The provision of clothing and/or toiletries
appropriate for cold weather, job interviews, or.
work.

1.3.7.3.4. Gift and/or gas cards, in an amount not to exceed
$20 per card, for , use to purchase items at
locations including, but not limited to:

1.3.7.3.4.1. Gas stations.

1.3.7.3.4.2. Drugstores.

1.3.7.3.4.3. Department stores.

1.3.7.3.4.4. Thrift stores.

1.3.7.3.5. Other services as identified, authorized, and
■  requested by the DoonA^ay and as appro>^, [n

writing,, by the Department. ~
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EXHIBIT B

1.3.8. The Contractor must provide account management and coordination
services for FNF service providers that includes, but is not limited to:

-1.3.8.-1. Ensuring the services are rendered in a.timely, efficient, and
cost effective manrier.

1.3.8.2. Compiling, maintaining, and updating a current list of:

1.3.8.2.1. FNF service providers across the state by type
and region; and

1.3.8.2.2. Identified gaps in FNF supports and services
across the state by type and region.

1.3.9. The Contractor must ensure FNF supports and services respect and
respond to'the cultural, linguistic, and other social and environmental
needs of the individual.

1.3.10. The Contractor must disseminate best practices information to FNF
service providers for embracing diversity, challenging sen/ice biases,
and creating safe and inclusive environments for individuals of all
backgrounds.

1.3.11. The Contractor must reimburse Doon/vays for medications used to
treat substance use disorder prescribed to individuals receiving FNF
supports and services, as requested, identified and authorized.

1.3.12. The Contractor must maintain documentation of all FNF supports and
services requested and provided. The Contractor must ensure
documentation includes, but is not limited to:

1.3.12.1. Date and time of FNF supports and/or service request.

1.3.12.2. Requesting Doorway.

1.3.12.3. . Type of service and/or support requested.

1.3.12.4. Reason for request.

1.3.12.5. Name of individual receiving supports and/or services.

1.3.12.6. Verification of FNF supports and services eligibility.

1.3.12.7. Name of service provider used and reason for selection.

1.3.12.8. Date and time of supports and/or service provision.

'1.3.12.9. Beginning and ending locations of transportation, as
applicable.'

,1.3.12.10. Cost of service and/or support provided.

1.3.12.11. Date paid.

1.3.12.12. Form of payment.

-■ ' \Ta
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EXHIBIT B

1.3.12.13. Proof of payment.

1.3.12.14. Beginning and remaining balance'of FNF funds.

1.4. FNF Fund Management and Administration

, 1.4.1. The Contractor must manage and monitor expenditures of .FNF
funding as identified, authorized, and requested by the Doorways,
and as approved by the Department as needed.

T.4.2. The Contractor must maintain a process to receive and process
invoices from, and provide• payment to, FNF service providers for
.services rendered.

1.4.3. The Contractor must review all Doorway invoices to ensure requested
reimbursement Is for allowable FNF services and supports. .

1.4.4. The Contractor miist ensure funding is: . • • •

1.4.4.1. Paid directly to the service provider; and .

. 1.4.4.2. Not given or made, available to the individual receiving FNF
supports and/or services in the form of cash.

1.4.5. The Contractor must maintain records and accounts of all costs and

expenditures associated with FNF supports and services.

1.4.6. The Contractor must immediately notify the Department in writing
. when total available FNF-.funds reach $250,000. ■

1.5. The Contractor must facilitate meetings with the Doonways to review
processes, ensure the FNF project structure Is working "as intended, and
mitigate solutions to any issues. The Contractor must ensure meetings are
offered, at a minimum, weekly for the first eight (8) weeks after the contract
effective date and then bi-weekly for the remainder of the term of the
Agreement unless otherwise approved by the Department.

T6. The. Contractor-must participate in program monitoring activities and fiscal
reviews monthly, or as otherwise requested by the Department to discuss
program sustainabiiity and ongoing.access to vulnerable populations.

1.7: The Contractor must collaborate with the Department to evaluate population-
level data generated by activity within th.e FNF services.and supports prograrri
structure to: .

1.7.1. , Explore the various factors-contributing to differences in outcomes
between demographic grcLUps; '

1.7.2.' Analyze whether current approaches and interventions can be
improved to ensure equitable access .to services;

1.7.3. Explore methods and ways to bridge health and social care in
identified locations with gaps; and '

n-
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EXHIBIT B

17.4. Drive positive change and impact in social and systematic staictures.

1.8. Staffing

1.8.1. The Contractor must maintain sufficient staff necessary to perform
and carry" out all of the functions, requirements, roles and duties
identified this Agreement.

1.8.2. The Contractor must notify, the Department in writing, within five (5)
business days, of changes in key personnel. Key personnel are those
staff members for whom at least 10% of their work time is spent on
this scope of services.

1.8.3. The Contractor must notify the Department in writing within one (1)
• month of hire when a new administrator, coordinator, or any staff

person essential to carrying out this scope of services is hired to work
in the program.

1.8.4. The Contractor must ensure notification includes a copy of the newly
hired staff member's resume, which clearly indicates the staff member
is employed by the Contractor.

1.9. Reporting

1.9.1. The Contractor rriust establish the first reporting period for funding
reimbursement within 60 calendar days after the contract effective
date.

1.9.2. The Contractor must submit monthly reports to the Departrnent on the
15"^ working day of the following month. The Contractor must ensure

•  - each report includes, but is not limited to:

1.9.2.1. Total number of FNF supports and service requests
.  . statewide.

1.9.2.2. Total number of FNF supports and service requests broken
out by service type and requesting Doorway.

1.9.2.3. Total number of individuals receiving FNF services
statewide.

1.9.2.4. Total number of individuals" receiving FNF services, broken
out by service type and requesting Doonway.

1.9.2.5. Total number of individuals receiving FNF services, broken .
out by service type statewide.

1.9.2.6. Name of service provider{s) used and reason for selection,
broken out by service type and requesting Doorway.,

1.9.2.7. Cost of service, range and average.

1.9.2.8. Beginning and remaining balance of FNF funds.
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EXHIBIT B

1.9.2.9. A detailed assessment of Identified gaps in .state-wide
service providers for Department review. ■

1.9.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other data and metrics to
the Department in a format specified by the Department.

1.10. State Opioid Response fSORI Grant Standards

1.10.1. The Contractor must meet with the Department within 60 days of the
contract effective date to review the proposed plan for contract

■  implementation. .

1.10.2. The Contractor and/or referred providers must ensure-that only Food
and Drug Administration" approved medications for Opioid Use

•  Disorder (CUD) are utilized.

1.10.3. The Contractor and referred providers must only provide medical
withdrawal management services to any individual supported by SCR
Grant Funds if the withdrawal management service is accompanied
by the use of injectable extended-release naltrexone. as clinically
appropriate. .

1.10.4. The Contractor and referred providers must ensure staff who are
trained in Presumptive Eligibility for Medicaid are available to assist
individuals with enrolling .in public or private health insurance.

1.10.5. The Contractor must ensure individuals receiving services, rendered
from SDR funds, have a documented history or current diagnoses of
Opioid Use Disorder or Stimulant Use Disorders (OUD/StimUD) or
are at risk for such .

1.10.6. The Contractor rriust coordinate completion of Government
Performance Results Act (GPRA) initial interview and associated
follow-ups at six (6) months and discharge for individuals referenced
previously.

1.10.7. The Contractor must submit a detailed plan within 30 days of contract
effective date for ensuring GPRA completion for all clients receiving
SOR funding."

1.10.8. The Contractor must ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to
purchase, prescribe, or provide cannabis or for providing treatment
using cannabis. The Contractor must ensure:

1.10.8.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of

. OUD/StimUD.

1.10.8.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who or
organization that provides or permits cannabis use for the
purposes of treating substance use or mental_^|alth
disorders.

RFP-2024-DBH-02-FLEXI-01 B-2.0 Contractor Irtlials
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1.10.8.3. This cannabis restriction applies to all subcontracts and
Memorandums of Understanding that receive SOR funding.

1.10.9. The Contractor must ensure Naloxone kits are available to

individuals, utilizing SOR funding arid other identified resources.

1.10.10. If the Contractor intends to distribute test strips, the Contractor must
provide a test strip utilization plan to the Departmentfor approval prior
to Implementation. The Contractor must ensure the utilization plan
includes, but is not limited to:

1.10.10.1. ' Internal policies for the distribution of test strips;

1.10.10.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

1.10.10.3., Other key data as requested by the Department.

1.10.11. The Contractor must provide services to eligible individuals who:

1.10.11.1. Receive MOUD services from other providers,
including the individual's primary care provider;

1.10.11.2. Have co-occurring mental health disorders; or

1:10.11.3. Are on medications and are taking those medications
as prescribed regardless of the class of medication: ■

1.10.12.The Contractor must ensure individuals who refuse to consent to

information sharing with the Doorways do not receive services
utilizing SOR funding.

' 1.10.13..The Contractor must ensure individuals who rescind consent to
information sharing with the Doorways do not receive any additional
services utilizing SOR funding.

1.10.14. The Contractor must collaborate with the Department and other SOR
funded Contractors, as requested and directed by the Department, to
improve GPRA collection.

1.10.15. The Contractor must comply with all appropriate Department. State of
NH. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
(SAMHSA), and .other Federal terms, conditions, and requirements,
and as amended, and shall collaborate with the Department to
understand the aforesaid.

1.11. Background Checks

1.11.1. Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under this
Agreement, the Contractor must ensure that said individual has
undergone;

1.11.1.1. A criminal background check, at the Contractor's
expense, and has no convictions for crihjtp^^^t

RFP-2024-DBH-02-FLEX)-01 B-2.0 Contractor IniUals
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represent evidence of behavior that could endanger
Individuals served under this Agreement; and

1.11.1.2. A name search of the Department's Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services (SEAS) State Registry, pursuant to
RSA 161-F:49, with results indicating no evidence of
behavior that could endanger Individuals served under
this Agreement.

1.12. Confidential Data/Systems

1.12.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy
requirements as set by the Department and in accordance with the
Department's Exhibit E, Information Security Requirements, Exhibit
F, Business Associate Agreement, and Exhibit G, IT Requirements
Workbook, which are attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

1.12.2. The Contractor must ensure any individuals involved In delivering
services through this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing
to access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance
with federal and state laws and regulations and the Department's
Exhibit E, Information Security Requirements. The Contractor must
ensure said Individuals have a justifiable- business need to access
confidential data. The Contractor must provide attestations upon
Department request.

1.12.3. If applicable the Contractor must, within 60 days of notice from the
Department, transition from the Contractor's existing IT platform(s)
used for Flexible Needs Funding approved supports and service
requests within this Agreement, to the Department's specified Closed
Loop Referral solution. The Contractor must transfer IT functionality
that includes, but is not limited to:

1.12.3.1. Receiving requests for Flexible Needs Funding
■  supports and services from the Doorways, both placed

on the platform by the DoonA/ays and/or received by
telephone calls from the Doorways.

1.12.3.2. ■ Processing and closing out the requests for Flexible
Needs Funding supports and services received from
the Doorways.

1.12.3.3. Obtaining Department approval of all required client
consent forms and processes prior to any transfer of
information into the Department's closed loop referral
system.

-OS

TA
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1.12.4. If applicable, the Contractor must interface through open application
programming interfaces (APIs) to the State's contracted closed loop
referral vendor. If the Contractor's system leverages a different
vendor's referral platform then the interface must submit all pertinent
information to the State's referral platform and be able to receive and
route referrals from the State's referral platform back into the vendor's
referral platform.

1.12.5. If applicable, the Department reserves the right to require the
Contractor to transition additional functionality to the Department's
Closed Loop Referral solution within 90 days of advanced notice.

1.12.6. The Contractor must complete transition activities at no additional
■cost. ■ .

1.13. Privacy Impact Assessment .

1.13.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department
In conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of Its
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) or Department
system(s)/application(s)/web ,portal(s)/website(s) hosted by the
Contractor, if Personally Identifiable Information (Pll) is collected,
used, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor

•  ' must provide the Department access to applicable systems and
documentation sufficient to allow the Department to, assess, at
minimum, the following:
1.13.1.1. How Pll is gathered and stored: * ■

1.13.1.2. Who will have access to Pll;

1.13.1.3. How Pll will be used in the system;

1.13.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and

. 1.13.1.5. Privacy practices.

1.13.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are
either significant process changes or new technologies impacting the
collection, processing or storage of Pll.

1.14. Contract End-of-Ltfe Transition Services " - ■

1.14.1. General Requirements

1.14.1.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the
■ Agreement the parties agree to cooperate in good faith to

effectuate a smooth secure transition of the Services from
the Contractor to the Department and, if applicable, the
Contractor engaged by the Department to assume the
Services previously performed by the Contractor/^i^is

/ ^
RFP-2024rDBH-02-FLEXl-01 * ' B-2.0 Conlractor Inlllals
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section the new Contractor shall be known as "Recipient").
90 days prior to the end-of the contract or unless otherwise
specified by the Department, the Contractor must begin
working with the Department and if applicable, the.new
Recipient to develop a Data Transition Plan (DTP). The
Department shall provide the DTP template to the
Contractor. "

1.14.1.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the

Recipient, in connection with the transition from the
performance of Services by the Contractor and its End
Users to the performance of such Services. This may
include assistance with the secure transfer of records

(electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data
(electronic and hard,copy), the transition of any such Service
from the hardware, software, network and
telecommunications equipment and ' internet-related
information technology infrastructure ("Internal IT Systems")
of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems of the Recipient and
cooperation with and' assistance to any third-party

.  consultants engaged by Recipient In connection with the
. Transition Services.

1.14.1.3. If a system, database, hardware, software.'and/or software
licenses (Tools) was.purchased or created to manage, track,
and/or store Department Data in relationship to this contract
said Tools will be inventoried and returned to the

Department, along with the inventory document, once
transition of Department Data is complete.

.  1.14.1.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the
■  Contractor and its End Users shall be provided to the
Department and if applicable the Recipient in a timely
manner. Any such Transition Services shall be deemed to
be Services for purposes of this Agreement. •

1.14.1.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the
.  •' Agreement, the Contractor agrees that the Information"

Security Requirements, and if applicable, the Department's
Business Associate Agreement terms and conditions
remain In effect until the Data Transition is accepted as
complete by the Department.

1'.14.1.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled
Department Data and the destruction or Transition of said
data is not feasible, the Department and Contract^^ will
jointly evaluate regulatory and professional stanfef^^r

RFP-2024-OBH-02-FLEX1-01 B-2.0 Contractor lnllia!s>
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retention requirements prior to destruction, refer to the terms
and conditions of. the Department's DHHS Information
Security Requirements Exhibit. . '

1.14.2. Completion of Transition Services

1.14.2.1. Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed
completed (and the Transition process finalized) at the end
of 15 business days after the product, resulting from the
Service, Is delivered to the Department and/or the Recipient

in accordance with the mutually agreed upon Transition
plan, unless within said 15 business day term the Contractor,
notifies the Department of an issue requiring additional time
to complete said product.

1.14.2.2. Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the
Contractor will have .30 .days to destroy the data per the

.  terms and conditions of the Departments Information
Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.14.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

1.14.3.1. In the event the Department is not satisfied with" the results
of the Transition Service, the Department shall notify the
Contractor, In writing, stating the reason for the lack of
satisfaction within 15 business days of the final product or at
any time during the data Transition process. The Parties
shall discuss the actions to be- taken to resolve the

disagreement or issue. If an agreement Is not reached, at
any time the Department shall be entitled to initiate actions
In accordance with the Agreement.

2. Exhibits Incorporated .

2.1. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibit D Federal Requirements through
Exhibit G, IT Requirements Workbook, which are,attached, hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in.
accordance with the terms of Exhibit E, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information In

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and In
accordance with the attached Exhibit F, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

/  DS
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3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within.ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication" access
and language assistance services to be proyided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with

.  lirhited English profidency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

■ 3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, 'The
preparation of this (report; document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human'
Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,

.  distribution or use.

3;3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced specifically for the Department under this
Agreement, including, but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. "Resourcedirectories.

3.3.3.3. ■ Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports. . ,

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced Ljn^?the
RFP-2024-DBH-02-FLEXi-0t * B-2.0 ' Contractof InlUals^
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Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

4. Compliance

4.1. The Contractor must be in compliance with applicable federal and state laws,
rules and regulations, and applicable poiicies and procedures adopted by the
Department currently in effect, and as they may be adopted or amended during
the contract period.

5. Records

5.1. The .Contractor must keep records that include, but.are riot limited to:

5.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting ail costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received,
or collected by the Contractor. . , '

5.1.2. Ail records must be maintained in accordance, with accounting
■  procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such

costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, ail ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards,, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department. . '

5.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include ail records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and ail
invoices submitted" to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

5.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

■  5.3. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow
any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department
retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as
are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

DS

■A ' V
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Payment Terms

. 1.' This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. - 100% Federal funds from the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services (US DHHS), Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA) State Opiold Response (SOR) Grant, ALN
#93.788, as awarded on 09/01/2023, FAIN H79TI085759.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

. 2.1. The Contractor as a Subredplent, In accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred In the fulfillment of this Agreement, and must be in accordance with

*  the approved line iterhs, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget.

4. The Contractor must ensure funding is not utilized to purchase or pay for
services unallowable through the State Opioid Response (SOR) federal grant
guidelines, which includes, but is not limited to:

4.1. Amounts prior to effective date of contract.

■  4.2. Construction or renovation expenses. " " '

4.3. Food or water.

4.4. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide cannibis or
treatment using cannabis.

4.5. Fines, fees, or penalties.-

4.6. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for Individuals receiving services
under this Agreement.

4.7. Promotional items including, but not limited to, clothing and
commemorative items with added logos for distribution to clients and the
community, including, but not limited to pens, mugs/cups, folders/folios,
lanyards, and conference bags. See 45 CFR 75.421(e)(3).

4.8. Direct payments to individuals' to enter treatment or continue to
participate In prevention or treatment services. See 42 U.S.C.'§ 1320a-

'  7b.

4.9. Sterile needles or syringes for the hypodermic injection of any illegal
drug..

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the 15"^ working day of the month following the month
In which the services were provided. The Contractor must ensure each ihv^ice;

\
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5.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

5.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department. ■ ■

5.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous.month.

5.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each Invoice
that may Include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,

receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

5.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable.expenses to Initiate payment.

5.6.. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to DHHS.DBHInvoices.BDAS@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services.
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

6. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within 30 days of
receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses,
subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice. •

7. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than 40 days after the contract completion
date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

8. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encurnbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council. If needed and
justified.

9. . Audits

9.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

r

9.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more In
federal funds received as a subreciplent pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200-, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

.  . • 9.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations.

'  * ! ̂
RFP-2024-DBH^2-FLEXI-01 C-2.0 Contractor Initials.

I  , 11/30/2023
Foundation for Healthy Communities ' • Page 2 of 3 Date
7.14.23



DocuSign Envelope ip: AC8CBF35r5968-4F98-8390-0FFeFEEE3A6F

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Flexible Needs Funds Administration and Service Acquisition for NH Doorways

EXHIBIT C

9.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations .to
submit an annual financial-audit ■ .

9.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor must submit an annual Single Audit
perfonned by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to
dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's
fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

9.2.1. The Contractor must submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
•  ' and any associated corrective action pians. The Contractor must

submit quarterly progress reports on the status of implementation
of the corrective action plan.

9.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor must submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days
after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

9.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of
the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA If the Department's
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractoris high-risk.

9.6. In addition to, and not in any \vay in limitation of obiigations of the
Agreement, it is understood and-agreed by the Contractor that the

■ Contractor shall be held liable for any state of federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception,

RFP-2024-DBH-02-FLEX1-01
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Exhibit C-1 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Foundation for HeaJlhy Communities

Budget Request for Flexible Needs Funds Administration

Budget Peiidd; 1/1/24-Q/29/24

.  . Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 5.26%

m

■X

1. Salary & Wages
2. Fringe Benefits.

3. Consultants

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2
CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.
5.(a) Supplies - Educational
5.(b) Supplies - Lab
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy
5.(d) Supplies - Medical
6. Travel
7. Software

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications
8. (b) Other - Education and Training
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (Audit Costs)

Other (Subcontracts)
Other (please specify)

Other (please specify)
Other (please specify)
Other (please specify)
Other (please specify)

9. Subrecipient Contracts

Total Direct Costs

Total Indirect Costs

Subtotals

:i.e

$14,949
$5,200

$0

$0
so
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$5,000
$112,500

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$934,169

$1,071.818

$68,182

$1,140.000

w
ad

$5,064
$2,000

$0

$0

$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$37,500
$0
$0
SO

$0
$502,709

$547,273

$22,727

$570,000
t.$.1»7<ip;00()j

Contractor Initial;
[VA
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Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

SECTION A: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

tJS DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS ,

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and-published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by contractors (and by inference, sub- contractors), prior to '
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that
a contractor (and by inference, sub-contractors) that Is a State may elect to make one certification to the
Department In each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each Agreement during the federal fiscal
year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon'
which reliance is'placed when the agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or
government wide suspension or debarmenL Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street " • ' . .
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition: /

-  1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring

in the wor1<place:
1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged In the performance of the

Agreement be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the-statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the Agreement, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occumng in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;
1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under

.  ̂ subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. Including position title, to every contract
officer on whose contract activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Ff
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agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
identification number(s) of each affected Agreement;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions. within"30 calendar.days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

-  1.6.1.. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or ' .

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to coritihue to maintain a drug-free workplace through Implementation
of paragraphs 1.1,1.2,1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The Contractor may Insert In the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done
in connection with the specific Agreement;

• - Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.
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SECTION B: CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying,
and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
.  US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION-CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•  'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families'under Title IV-A

•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI . '
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or .modification of any Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by
specific mention sub-contractor). • .

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an emptoyee of a Member of Congress in connection with
this Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub- contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,
in accordance with its instructions, see https://omb.report/lcr/201009-0348-022/doc/20388401

i

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included In the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reiiance was placed when this
'  transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification Is a prerequisite for making or

entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure.
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SECTION C: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION AND OTHER

RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply v/ith the provisions
of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12W9 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foilpwing
Certification: • _ - '

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In
denial of participation in this covered transaction, if necessary, the prospective participant shall
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification: The certification or explanation will
be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS deterniined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this Agreement is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant leams that its
certification was erroneous when submitted of has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction," 'debarred,' 'suspended,' "ineligible." "lower tier CQvered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal." and
'voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title45-vol1/CFR-2004-title45-vol1-part76/context.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this Agreement that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knovnngly enter into any lower tier.covered'
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS. .

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in ail solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended. Ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties)-Ds
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/titler22/chapter-V/part-513.
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9. . Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this' clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required.to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transadions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may tenninate this
transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
-11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
■  11.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

•  voluntarily excluded from covered .transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (Agreement) been convicted of

or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or

,  local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen properly;

11.3. Are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any 6f the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(l)(b) of this certification; and • .

11.4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. -

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (Agreement), the prospective lower tier
participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and
Its principals:
13.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any federal department or
agency.

13.2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (Agreement).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (Agreement) that it
will Include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibllity, and
Voluntary Exclusipn - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
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SECTION D: CERTIFICATION OF COIVIPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH«BASED

■ORGANIZATIONS. WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS. CLEAN AIR AND CLEAN WATER
ACT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subcontractors to comply, with any applicable federal
nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

1. The Omnibus Grime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which
prohibits recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment
practices or In the delivery of services of benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national
origin, and sex. The Act requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity
Plan; . '

2. The Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts
by reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under
this statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or In the delivery of

■  services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

3. The Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or
activity): . ' •

4. The Rehabilitation Act of 1973.(29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal
financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to'employment and the
delivery of services or benefits, in any program or activity;

5. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and
local government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

6. The Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex In federally assisted education programs;

7. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on.
the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

8. 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt.
42 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity;
Policies and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based
and community organizations): Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles
and policy-making criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

9. 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense ,
Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2Qjlth;;fl3e Pilot:  ̂ ^ — \^A
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Program for Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects
employees against reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants
and contracts.

10. The Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) which seeks to protect human health and the
environment from emissions that pollute ambient, or outdoor, air. . .

11. The Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1251 -1387) which establishes the basic structure for regulating
discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United Slates and regulating quality standards for surface
waters.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or government wide suspension or
debarment."

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of '
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights,
to the applicable contracting agency or division within.the Department of Health and Human Services,
and to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified In Section 1,3 of the General Provisions'agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representative as idenfrfied in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

DS
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SECTION E: CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE .

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of-
1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased
or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health. day care;
education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal
programs either directly or through State or local, governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan
guarantee. The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded
solely by'Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment. Failure to.comply with the provisions of the law mjay result in the imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition oif an administrative compliance order on
the responsible entity.

.The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part 0, known as the Pro-Children Act
of 1994.
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SECTION F: CERTlFICATiON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT IFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or alter October 1,2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or
more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant rrrodifications result in a total award
equal to or over $30,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of
the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information),
the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
sub award or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1. Name of entity

2. Amount of award-

3. Funding agency

4. NAICS codeforcontracts / CFDA program numberforgrants^

5. Program source " • . *

6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

7. Location of the entity

8. Principle place of performance

9. Unique Entity Identifier (SAM DEI; DUNS#) * '
.  -

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1.. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30
days, in which the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law. 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractors representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH •
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability- and Transparency Act.

v1 6/23 ■ Exhibit D Contractor's inltiais,
•  Federal Requirements Date

Page 9 of 10



DocuSign Envelope ID: AC8CBF35-5968-4F98-8390.0FF8FEEE3A6F ,

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

FORMA

As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

PCUKMCAPNQF8
1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is: *

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,
subcontracts, loans, grants, 8ul>-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or
more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrahts,
and/or cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 O.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of '
1986? • . ' -

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. slop here ' " •
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following: • •

4. ' The names and compensation of the five niost highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows;

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name;

Name;

Amount:

Amount:

J Amount:

Amount:.

Amount:

U/30/2023

Date: •

Contractor Name:

-OeeuSlgrwd by:

.S3C??BP07aiF440..

Name:Peter Ames

Title:
Executive Director
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A. Definitions "

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized, access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. VVith regard to Protected Health Information," Breach"
shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have .the. same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident

•  Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of
Commerce.

3. ."Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance

'  Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial Information
(PFI), Federal Tax Infoimation (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this- Contract.

5. "HIRAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability .Act of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder.

6.. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
' which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to. gain unauthorized access to a

system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss .of data through theft or device misplacement, loss-
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or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
mall, all-of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized access,
use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is not
.  designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information Technology

or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by means of the
State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and not adequately secure for

the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFi, PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity,-such astheir.name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,

• ■ alone, or when combined with other persona! or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164; promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided iri the
.  definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §

160.103.

■  .11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health.Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Heaith information that is

not" secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed
or endorsed- by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the
American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information

except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would -constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.
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2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a request
for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, In response to a subpoena, etc.,
without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to
the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of
DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

IWETHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION'OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing Confidential
Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been evaluated
by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said application's encryption
capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a rnethod of transmitting DHHS
data.' • .

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if email
is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of persons
authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential Data, the
secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL encrypts
data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file hosting
services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Confidential Data
said devices must be encrypted and password-protected. '
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8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) whea remotely
transmitting via an open wirele^ network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote corrimunication to access
or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be Installed on the End
User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will be transmitted or accessed.

"10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If End
User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will structure the
Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information. SFTP
folders and sub-foiders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for' 24-hour
auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours).

11."Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting ConHdential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted'to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted under
this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security rhonltoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems;

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and . hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral,
antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and antl-malware utilities. The environment, as
a whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.
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6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
■  Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting

Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

.  1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential lnformation on its systems (or its sub-,
contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will obtain written
certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor or
any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of New
Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program In '
accordance with' industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for Media
Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. Department of
Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify, in writing at time'of the data
destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department upon request.
The written certification will Include all details necessary to demonstrate data has
been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the
State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified,.within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and . any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1.. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential
information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery of contracted •
services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential
Information throughout -the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation,
transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to
store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper,-etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect
potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or Department
confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End Users
in support of protecting Department confidential iriformation.

6. If the Contractor will be sul>contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for. State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those for
the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
arid maintaining access to any Department system{s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey vyill be .completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between.the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior
express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office leadership
member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make
efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent
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future breach land minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

the breach, iricluding but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center'services necessary due to the
breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects maintain

.  the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less than the level
and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but not limited to,
provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy Act Regulations
(45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that
govern protections for individually identifiable health information and as applicable
under State law.'

.13. Contractor-agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must,provide a level and scope of
security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Avww.nh.gov/dort/vendor/index.htm for the
Department of Information Technology policies, g'uideiines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the State's Security
Officer of any security breach immediately, at the emai) addresses provided in Section
VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that
connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this Contract

to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform their official
duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users: ,

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented
to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS under this Contract
from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

'c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, P), or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.
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d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvpted and being sent
to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive such

.  information.

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential' Information to the extent' permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually identifiable
data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that Is physically and
technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances Involved.

.  i. understand that their user aedentials (user name and password) must not. be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.

This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible foe oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite Inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
Including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, and other
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed
of in accordance with this Contract.

y. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any Security '
Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification

• procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information is Involved In Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit of P-37;
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4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine'the risk level of Incidents and
determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so. Identify appropriate Breach
notification methods; timing, source, and contents from among different options; and

- bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as applicable,
In accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20. .

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer; ' - ^ -
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov B.

.  DHHS Security Officer;

DHHSInformatlonSecurityOffice@dhhs.n.h.gov

Contractor initials'
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BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement (Form P-37)
('Agreement"), and any of its agents who receive use or have access to, protected- health
information (PHI), as defined herein, shall be referred to as the "Business Associate." The State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, "Departmenf shall be referred
to as the "Cpvered Entity," The Contractor and the Department are collectively referred to as "the
parties." • .

The parties agree, to corhply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public
Law 104-191, the Stjandards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable .Health-
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164 (HIPAA), provisions of the HITECH Act, Title XIII,
Subtitle D, Parts 1&2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, 42 USC 17934,
et sec.,- applicable to business associates, and as applicable, to be bound by the provisions of
the Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 USC s. 290 dd-2,42 CFR Part
2, (Part 2), as any of these laws and regulations may be amended from time to time.

(1) Definitions

a. The following terms shall have the same meaning as defined In HIPAA, the HITECH
Act, and Part 2. as they may be amended from time to time:

"Breach," "Designated Record Set," "D^a Aggregation," Designated Record
Set," "Health Care Operations." "HITECH Act," "Individual," "Privacy Rule."
"Required by law," "Security Rule," and "Secretary."

b. Business Associate Agreement, (BAA) means the Business Associate Agreement
that includes privacy and confidentiality requirements of-the Business Associate
working with PHI and as applicable, Part 2 record(s) on behalf of the Covered Entity
under the Agreement.

-  c. "Constructively Identifiable," means there is a reasonable basis to believe that the
Information could be used, alone or in combination with other reasonably available
Information, by an anticipated recipient to Identify an Individual who is a subject of
the information.

d. "Protected Health Information" ("PHI") as used In the Agreement and the BAA,
means protected health Information defined In HIPAA 45 CFR 160.103, limited to
the information created, received, or used by Business Associate from or on behalf
of Covered Entity, and includes any Part 2 records, if applicable, as defined below.

e. • "Part 2 record" means any patient "Record," relating to a "Patient," and "Patient
Identifying Information," as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11.

f. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that
Is not secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited
by the American National Standards Institute.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit Protected
Health Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services
outlined under the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, Including

Exhibit F

Contractor Initials
Business Assodate Agreement

Page lots 12/5/2023

V2.0



DocuSlgn Envelope ID: ACeCBF3&-5968-4Fg8-8390-OFFBFE^E3A6F

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human

Exhibit F
m

•limited to all its directors, officers, employees, and agents, shall protect any PHI as
required by HIPPA and 42 CFR Part 2, and not use, disclose, maintain, store, or .
transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of HIPAA or 42 CFR
Part 2. •

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI, as applicable:

I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;

II. ■ As required by law. according to the terms set forth in paragraph c. and d. below;

III. According to the HIPAA minimum necessary standard;

IV. • For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of the Covered
Entity; and

V. Data that is de-identified or aggregated and remains constructively identifiable
may not be used for any purpose outside the performance of the Agreement

*  c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the BAA or the Agreement to
;  disclose PHI to any third party or subcontractor prior to making any disclosure, the

Business Associate must obtain, a business associate agreement or other
agreement with the third party or subcontractor, that complies with HIPAA and
ensures that all requirements and restrictions placed on the Business Associate as
part of this BAA with the Covered Entity, are included In those business associate
agreements with the third party or subcontractor.

d. The Business Associate shall not, disclose any PHI in response to a request or
demand for disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis that it
Is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can
determine how to best protect the PHI. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure,
the Busiriess Associate agrees to refrain from disclosing the PHI and shall
cooperate with the Covered Entity in any effort the Covered Entity undertakes to
contest the request for disclosure, subpoena, or other legal process. If applicable
relating to Part 2 records, the Business Associate shall resist any efforts to access
part 2 records in any judicial proceeding.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

.  a. Business Associate shall implement appropriate safeguards to. prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of all PHI in accordance with HIPAA Privacy Rule
and Security Rule with regard to electronic PHI, and Part 2, as applicable.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately notify the Covered Entity!s Privacy
Officer at the following email address,. DHHSPrivacyOfflcer@dhhs.nh.gov after the
Business Associate has determined that any use or disclosure not provided for by
its contract, including any known or suspected privacy or security Incident or breach
has occurred potentially exposing or compromising the PHI. This includes
Inadvertent or acddental uses or disclosures or breaches of unsecured' protected
health Information. . . . • ^

c. In the event of a breach, the Business Associate shall comply with the terms of this
Business Associate Agreement, all applicable state and federal laws and
regulations, and any additional requirements of the Agreement,

d. The Business Associate shall perform a risk assessment, based oh the Information
available at the .time it becomes aware of any known or suspected privaeyjor
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security breach as described above and communicate the risk assessment to the
Covered Entity. The risk assessment shall include, but not be limited to:

I. The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of ideritiifiers and the likelihood of re-identrfication;

II. The unauthorized person who accessed, used, disclosed, or received the
protected, health information;

III. Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed; and

IV. How the risk of loss of confidentiality to the protected health Information
has been.mitigated.

e. The Business Associate shall complete a risk assessment report at the conclusion
of Its incident or breach investigation and provide the findings in a written report to
the Covered Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the Business
Associate's investigation.

f. Business Associate shall make available all of Its Internal policies and procedures,
books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or

•  created or received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the
US Secretary of Health and Human Services for purposes of determining the
Business Associate's and the Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the
Privacy and Security Rule, and Part 2, if applicable.

g. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or
have access to PHI under the BAA to agr^ in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein.'

h. Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices
all records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and
disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to
determine Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the BAA and the
Agreement.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a vwitten request from' Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet'
the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
an amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained In a Designated
Record Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered
Entity for amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered
Entity to fulfill jts obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

k. Business Associate shall document any disclosures of PHI and information related
to any disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request
by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528. ^

I. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make
available to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fu[fi{l

'  its obligations to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to
Exhibit F
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accordance with 45 CFR Section 164;528.

m. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall \Mthln five (5)

•  business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have
the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. How/ever, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the. Privacy and Security Rule, the Business
Associate shall instead respond.to the individual's request as required by such law
and notify Covered Entity'of such response as soon as practicable.

n. • Within thirty (30) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason,
the Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all
PHI received from or created or received by the Business Associate in connection
with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-ups of such PHI in any.
form or platform.

VI. If return or destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
•  otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, or If retention is governed by state

or federal law. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections
of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such

• PHI to those purposes that make the return or destmction infeasible for as
long as the Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its
■sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI,
the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been
destroyed.

(4) Qblioations of Covered Entrtv : ' •

a.- Covered Entity shall post a current version of the Notice of the Privacy Practices
on the Covered Entity's website: '

https://www.dhhs.nh.90v/00s/hipaa/publicati0ns.htm in accordance with 45 CFR
Section-164.520.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate "of any changes in, or
revocation of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may
be used or disclosed by Business Associate under this BAA, pursuant to 45 CFR
Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164,508.

c. Covered, entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the
, use or disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45
CFR 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

(5) Termination of Acreement for Cause

a. In addition to the General Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement, the Covered Entity
may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a
material breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate Agreement. The
Covered Entity may either Immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an
opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timeframe
specified by Covered Entity.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions, Laws, and Regulatory References. All laws and regulations
Exhibit F " •
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herein, shall refer to those laws and regulations as amended from time to time. A
reference In the Agreement, as amended to include this Business Associate
Agreement, to a Section In HIPAA or 42 Part 2, means the Section as in effect or
as amended.

b. Change In law- Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action
as Is necessary from time to time forthe Covered Entity and/or Business Associate
to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPM, 42 CFR Part 2 other
applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership - The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership
rights with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation - The parties agree that any ambiguity in the BAA and the
Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered Entity and the Business Associate
to comply with HIPAA and 42 CFR Part 2.

e. Segregation - If any term or condition of this BAA orthe.appHcationthereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms

■ or conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition: to this
end the terms and" conditions of this BAA are declared severable. .

f. • Survival - Provisions in this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, retum
or destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the BAA in section (3) g. and
(3) n.l., and the defense and indemnification provisions of the General Provisions
(P-37) of the Agreement, shall survive the termination of the BAA.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Business Associate
Agreement.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State

DoeuSlgiMd by:

j  S. fe*.

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Foundation for Healthy communities

Name of the Contractor •

—OocuSlgMd by:

■ HCgMWTBIP-KOBi-

Katja s. Fox

Name of Authorized Representative

Peter Ames

Name of Authorized Representative

Di rector

Title of Authorized Representative

Executive Director

Title of Authorized Representative

12/5/2023

Date

12/5/2023

Date
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Vendor Response Column:

Place a "Yes" if the current release of the software can fully support ALL the functionality described in the row,
without special customization. A "Yes" can only be used if the delivery method Is Standard (see delivery method
instructions below).

Otherwise, enter an "No"; A "No" can only be used with delivery method Future, Custom, or Not Available/Not
Proposing (see delivery method instructions below).

Criticality Column;

(M) Indicates a requirement that is "Mandatory". The State considers It to be of such great importance that it must
Be met in order for the proposal to be accepted. If the proposer believes that there is something about their
proposal that either obviates the need for this requirement or makes it of less importance this must be explained
within the comments. The State retains the right to accept a proposal If the need of the requirement is reduced or
eliminated by another feature of the proposal. • • .

(P) Indicates a requirement which.is "Preferred". This requirement is considered by the State to be of great
usefulness but the lack of this feature is not considered serious enough to disqualify the proposal.

(O) Indicates a.requirement which Is "Optional"..This requirement is considered by the State to be one which
useful or potentially useful but not a central feature of the Project.

Delivery Method Column:

Complete the delivery method using a Standard, Future, Custom, or Not Available/Not Proposing (as defined
below) that indicates how the requirement.will be delivered. '

Standard - Feature/Function is included in the proposed system and available in the current software release.
Future - Feature/Function will be available in a future release. (Provide anticipated delivery date, version, and
service release in the comment area.) ■

Custom - Feature/Function can be provided with custom modifications. (Respondent must provide estimated hours
and average billing rate or flat cost for the software modification in the comment area. These cost estimates should
add up to the total cost for software modifications .found in the cost summary table in Section X of the RFP).
Not Available/Not Proposing - Feature/Function has not been proposed by the Vendor. (Provide brief description of
why this functionality was not proposed.)

Comments Column:

For all Delivery Method responses .vendors must provide a brief explanation of how the requirement will be met.
Free form text can be entered into this column.'

Vendor lhkfuctibnS;foT.A^vitv/Delivjerable..ahd<Mllestone2i^S^^^^^ v •'
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f f. l>^«i¥^j£\V'-;^^tatevR^ujrements^^'^^
. •-vX- vt'V-V- -•>t:5n-"-*

^'tk^itV'
^.Vendor. "
i» . f •••

AResponsa':i

^llyofy"N
n^ithod'.

AH

Ability to access data using open standards access protocol (please

spetify supported versions In the comments fleid). M Yes Standard
Yes, Unite Us makes data avaslable in standard, machine-readable formats (for

example, CSV] through our data delf^eryand Unite Us Insights visualizations.

A1.2

Data Is available In commonly used format over which no entity has

exclusive control, with the exception of Natlottal or international

standards. Data Is not subject to any copyright, patent, trademark or
other trade secret regulatlort. M Yes Standard

lUL, UJia IS aVUlUUiU ill lUliiiiicNiiir uStU iOiiliaiS UWI Wntui no eiiuiy U4S

exclusive control and the data is not subject to copyright, patent, trademark,
or other trade secret regulation.

The State has the right to access data prtjvided by other organizations in

accordance with the Platftirm's functtonaltty and applicable law. unite Us does,
not own or purport to own data'submitted by the organizations in New

A1.3 ■

Web-based'compatlble and In conformance with.the following W3C
standards: HTM15, CSS 2.1, XML 1.1 M •  Yes Standard Unite Us Is compatible with these standards.

AW/CAnOA/SfCi/mty'.-: '.. .:-Sv; HJi'■•''Z.c^fAi''%i^.- •

A2.1

Verify the identity or authenticate all of the system client applications
before allowing use of the system to prevent access to inappropriate or
confidential data or services.

M Yes Standard
Yes, Unite Us employs industry-standard authentication protocols before
allowing use of the Platforni

A2.2

Verify the Identity and authenticate all of the fern's human users '
before ailowlng them to use iu capabilities to prevent access to
inappropriate or confidential data or services. '

M Yes Standard

Unite Us employs'technical safeguards and access controls for all users. During
the onboerding process, admlnistratois at organizations submit a reglstraUon
form that Identines their users and the specific role for each user within the
organization. User roles are created within tha Pbtform to reflect the
appropriate role-level viewing permissions based on their role. Each user of
the Unite Us Platform b provbioned with their own login credentiab and role-
level viewing permbsiORS settings to ensure only the minimum necessary
iriformation b shared In accordance with HIPAA, and the NiST Prindple of
least Privilege.

A2.3
Enforce unique user names.

M • Yes Standard
Unique usernames are required for each account on the Unite us Platform.
Shared or rrouD accounts are not allowed.

: .^A.
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Enforce complex passwords for Administrator Accounu In accordance

with OolTs statewide User Account and Password Policy.

•

•

unree usmitnuiv Luiiiptexpasywiti »equ»KiiiKiiis im aausuis in auuiudiice

with Dorr policies.
Passvrards must:

•6e a minimum of 15 characters in length

•Include a variation of uppercase (A-Z) and lowercase (a-z) letters

•Contain at least one (1) special characterand one (1) number:

•Special characters tnckide; ,

A2.4 M Yes Standard'

Passwords must r>ot: -

•Be simple words or phrases that are easy to guess. Example:
'pa$swordl234567*

•Contain a common proper name, user name, email address, initiats, first,

middle, or last name.

•Have been used previouslY and must be different from passwords you've used

before.

•Be shared. Each user at your organization should have their own passv/ord.

All passwords are stored In an encrypted format using a one-way salted and '

A2J

Enforce the use of complex passwortls for general users using capital
letters, numbers and special characters in accordance with D.orPs

statewide User Account and Password Policy.
M Yes Standard Confirmed. See A2.4. ,

A2.6

Encrypt passwords in transmission and at rest within the database.
•  M Yes Standard All passwords are encrypted using a one-way hashed and salted algorithm.

A2.7

Establish ability to expire passwords after a definite period of time In
accordance with OorTs statewide User Account and Password Polcy. M No

Not

Proposing

Users ere not required to change their passvw>rds at a set frequency as that

praalce Is no longer recommended by the National Institute of Standards and
Technology.

"A2.8
Provide the ability to limit the number of people that can grant or
change authorizations. M Yes Standard

Admlnlstratoraedentlals are limited In number and based on role and

responslbiiltv.

A2.9

Establish ability to enforce session timeouts during periods of Inactivity.
M Yes Standard

Sessions expire and are auttxnaticaly terminated afteraftfteenflS) minute-
period of Inactivity.

.  A2.10

The application shall not store authentication credentials or sensitive

data In Its code.. M Yes Standard

The application does not store authentication credentials or sensitive data In
Its code. All passwords are encrypted using a one-way hashed and salted
alenrlrhm.

A2.11

Log all attempted accesses that fail identification, authentication and
authorization requirements.

M Yes Standard

Unite Us logs all Interactions by users, and monitors usage and access,

Including failed attempts. Unite Us manages audit i^ and can provide reports
on user access and audit of access upon request. Audit logs capture basic and

detaled transactions, including: User ID and IP capture for togtn attempts,
both successful and faled; date/time stamps of activity, length of time per

sessionAotai time spent in product; access, aeatJon, deletion, or altering of
records; and time of log out, among other inforrhatlon. Lop are backed up and

stored pursuant to the Unite Us Audit Logi^ng and Monltodng poficy. Lc^ are

also scanned forvulneTabiiltles as part of our continuous monitoring

processes.
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A2.12

The appricatfon shall log all aaMtles to a central server to prevent

parties to application transactions from denying that they have taken

place.
Yes Standard Confirmed. SeeA2.11..

A2.13
All logs must be kept In accordance with the Scope of Services and
Exhibit K DHHS information Security Rpoulrements

Yes Standard Logs are maintained for a minimum of ten years.

Users are able to to terminate a session, with no remnants of the prior session
remaining. Sessloru can also expire and are automattcaHy terminated after a

fifteen 1151 minute oerlod of inacrtvltv.

A2.14

The appncation must allow a human user to expfldily terminate a

session. No remnants of the priorsession should then remain. Yes Standard

A2.1S

Do not use Software and System Services for anything other than they

are designed for. Yes Standard
Confirmed that Software and System Services are not permitted to be used for
purposes other than their desi^.

Tlie application Data shall be protected from unauthorized use when at

rest.

A2.16 Yes Standard

Data Is encrypted at rest and In storage. At rest, data b stored on encrypted

volumes using Amazon Web Services' Key Management Sendees (AW5 KMS).
Each volume is encr^ted with a unique 2S6-blt key. All keys are protected by

Amazon Web Services' key management Infrastructure, which Implements
strong lo^cal and physical security controls to prevent unauthorized access.

Amazon's overall key management Infrastructure uses Federal Information
Processing Standards (FIPS) 140-2 approved cryptographic algorithms and is

consistent with National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) 800-S7

recommendations, in addition to encryption, Unite Us employs Industry-

standard technical, administrative, and physical safeguards to restrict

unauthorized use.

TheappDcatlon shall keep any sensitive Data or cornmunlcatlons private

from unauthorized Individuals and programs.

A2.17 Yes Standard

Privacy and security are emphasized at every level across our organization.

Unite Us Is HITRUST, NIST, and SOC 2 Type (1 certified, and follows the highest

security frameworks In the industry. In addition. Unite Us b fully HIPAA

compliant and aligns with the strictest federal privacy regulations, includirtg 42

CFR Part 2. Unite Us operates ui^er pclides and procedures, which align and
support the HiPAA/HlTECH Privacy and Security rules, Including breach
prevention, identification, mitigation, and notification policies. Access to the

Unite Us Platform b role and permbsion-based. Thb struaure b the backbone

of our HlPAA-compllant and HITRUST-certlfied architecture: users cit only
view Information about Indlviduab to whom they are providing services,
aligning with the HIPAA Minimum Necessary Standard and NIST Principle of

least Privilege.

Unite Us also features enhanced protections for inherently sensitive

information, such as substance use dbortler treatment Information or services

sought by survivors of domestic violence. Our sensitive service type and

sensitive organization functionalities ensure even greater protectloru beyond
our Irtdustry-ieading privacy controb In order to protect the most vulnerable.

These enhanced protections ensure that, for referrab Involving sensitive

services or organizations, no other organization serving that Individual can see

any Indication that the IndMduai received a sensitive service orwas served by
a sensitive organization.
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A2.18

Subsequent application enhancements or upgrades shaD not remove or

degrade security requirements.

M Yes Standard

Yes, appncatlon enhaocemertts and upgrades wll not remove or degrade

security requirements. Unite Us has a robust change martagement process
that ensures that bD systems are fuBy tested and continuously moniored to

maintain security requirements.

Unite Us leverages our Chartge Management PoBcy and Software Deveiopment

Ufecyde to manage ccnfiguration.control changes. The change management

process weighs any potential security implications prior to change

implementation. SpecificaDv, alt configuration control changes require a

discovery phase, peer review, testing, implementation and rollback strategies

before they may be aoplted to any Unite Us emrironment.

A2.19

Utilize change management documentation and procedures.

M Yes Standard

Unite Us has a robust change management process that ensures that all

systems are fully tested and contlnuousiy monitored prior to any updates.

Unite Us leverages Its Change Management Policy and Software Development

Ufecycle to manage configuration control changes. The change management,
process addresses any potential security Implications prior to change

Implementation. Specifically, ail configuratio.n control changes require a

discovery'phase, peer review, testing, implementation and rollback strate^es

before they may be applied to any Unite Us environment.

A2.20

Web Services: The service provider shall use web services exduslvely to

interface with the State's data in near real time when possible.
M Yes Standard

Our Platform is a fully managed, doud-hosted. Software as a service (SaaS)

solution hosted on Amazon Web Services (AWS). lite only technical access

requirements are an internet-connected device that runs a modem browser.

A2.21

Logs must be configured using "fail-safe" configuration. Audit togs must

contain the follotvfrtg minimum information:

1. User JOs (of ail users who have access to the system)

2. Date and time stamps

3. Changes made to system configurations

4. Addition of new users

5. New users level of access .

6. Files accessed [tncludtng users)
7. Access to systems, appHcations and data

8. Access trail to systems and applications (successful and unsuccessful

attempts)
Q Corni1tv<Mwnt< ■

M Yes

I

Standard

Unite Us logs all interactibRS by users, and monitors usage and access. Untie
Us manages audit logs and can provide reports on user access and audit of

access to specific Information upon request. Audit logs capture basic and
delated transactions, including; User ID and IP capture for togln attempts,
both successhjt and failed; date/time stamps of activity, length of time per
sessionAotal time spent in product; access, aeatlon, deletion, or altering of
records; and time of logout, amongst other informetion. logs also indude the

addltional information referenced In A2.21 (addition of new users, levels of

access and records accessed, successful and security events). Logs are backed
up and stored pursuant to the Unite Us Audit Logging and Monitoring policy.
Logs are also scanned forvulnerabllttiesas part of our continuous monitoring

processes.
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grjSTIi^G.f.RKl

- ^v-' ■" jiv * " State Requlfenients- ■ • ■■ Vendor • '-v-' P^.-~ •
, J • 1 • • ^ ^

1  . Requirement Description ' 'jiN
-  ■ v: vV. .

Vendor ftesponse..
rt- i"\

Deltyery. Method " •• • '• • ••"Comments•:

Af^CAnONSECURny 'TESTtNG'.T:. ' : . ^vS:'*; ^ c  . C.v.: ;

TLl

All components of the Software shall be reviewed
and tested to ensure they protect the State's web
site and its related Data assets.

M Yes Standard
Unite Us regularly engages with State partners to support re>^e^ and testing of the
Software prior to State .access.

T1.2

The Vendor shall be responsible for providing
documentation of security testing, as appropriate.
Tests shall focus on the technical, administrative
and physical security controls that have been
designed into the System archlteaure |n order to
provide the necessary confidentiality, integrity and
availability.

M Yes Standard-

Unite Us confirms that we are responsible for providing documentation of annual
security testing that reflects the technical, administrative, and security controls
employed to provide confidentiancy, kitegrlty, and avallabintv.

TL3

Provide evidence that supporu the faa that
identification and Authentication testing has been
recently accompHshed; supports obtaining
information about those parties attempting to log
onto a system or application for security purposes -
and the validation of users.

M Yes Standard
Unite Us confirms that we wlO provide evidence of our annual security testing and
documentation that demonstrates that Identification and authentication testing are
regularly tracked.

T1.4

Test for Access Control; supports the management
of permissions for bgging onto a computer or
network. M Yes Standard

UAite Uf wdiVS d>r6ciiy witn organizations to map provtsioneo users to appropriate
user roles and access leveb. User access is regular^ reviewed with organizations to
ensure accuracy. Automation of user access control can be achieved by levera^g
available SSO authentication and SOM options. Unite Us also tests and conducts
regular access control audits of staff to ensure the correct leveb of access Is assigned
f« .t.rr

T1.S

Test for encryption; supports the encoding of data
for security purposes, and for the ablll^ to access'
the data in a decrypted format from required tools.

M Yes Standard

Data b encrypted at rest and In storage, in transit, data b transmitted using TLS 1.2
certificates with 256-bit encryption. At r«t, data b stored on encrypted volumes
using Amazon Web Services' Key Management Services (AWS KMS). Each volume Is
encrypted with a unique 256-blt key. All keys are protected by Amazon Web Serwces'
key management Infrastructure, which implements strong logical and physical -
security controb to prevent unauthorized access. Amazon's overall key management
Infrastructure uses Federal Information Processing Standards (FiPS) 140-2 approved
cryptographic algorithms and Is consbtent with National Institute of Standards and
Technology (NIST) 800-S7 recommendations.

TL6

Test the Intrusion Detection; supports the
detection of illegal entrance Into a computer
system. • Yes' Standard

tor tne unite us Kiattorm, intrusion detection and prevention sohiiions are tested
and Implemented and monitored via a third-party tool. The tool provides real time
notifications In the evant an intrusion b detected, plus a daily srsapshot. For Internal
to Unite Us endpoint devices, AV monitoring has been deployed via a centrally

T1.7

Test the Verification feature; supports the
confirmation of authority to enter a computer
system, application or network.

M Yes Standard

Unite Us tests and has installed agents on all servers, vmich are continuously
monitored for vufnerabHtties. We use Industry-leading scanning and continuous
monitoring capabilities to ensure there are static and dynamic'checks on the
lnfra<tnimjf»

■^A
12/6/2023



OocuSon Envtlop* IO:4SlFl128>SF58-44E4-97eOOE057BEBFaA3
Exhibit G - IT Requirements Workbook

Testing Sheet.

RFP-2024-OBH-02-FLEXI-01

T1.8

Test the User Management feature; supports the

administration of computer, tppicatlon and

network accounts within an organIzaclon.
M Yes Standard

Unite Us tests and supports organization-executed user management, allowing
administrative users at organizations to add/remove users as necessary.

Management of access is also possible through the customers SSO or SQM
ranaWllH^ T1.4.

T1.9

Test Role/Privilege Management; supports the
granting of abilities to users or groups of users of a
computer, application or network.

M Yes Standard

Unite Us tests and supports organization-executed user management, allowing
administrative users at organizations to add/rcmow users as necessary.'
Management of access is also possible through the customers SSO or SQM

capabilities, in addition, unite Us conducts regular access controj audits of staff to
ensure the correct levels of access is assigned to staff. Software user access can be
modified or removed In real-time by a user with the 'Organization Administrator'

user role. Altematively, users can request an access modification or removal from the

Unite Us Customer Support team via In-app Live Chat, email or phone.

n.io

Test Audit Trail Capture and Analysis; supports the

Identification and monitoring of activities within an

appticatlon or system.

M Yes Standard

/

Unite Us tests our logging capablties and logs all interactions by users, and monitors
usage and access. Unite Us manages audit logs and can provide reports on user
access and audit of access to specific information upon request Audit logs capture

basic and detailed transactions, kicJudlng; User ID and IP capture for login attempts,
both successful and failed; date/time stamps of activity, length of time per

sessionAotal time spent in product; access, creation, deletion, or altering of records;
and time of log out, amongst other Information. Logs are backed up end stored

pursuant to the Unite Us Audit Log^gend Monitoring policy. Logs, are also scanned
for vulnerabilities as part ofourcontinuous monitoring processes.

TLll

Test Input Validation; ensures the appBcatlon is

protected from buffer overflow, cross-site scripting,

SQL injection, and unauthorized accen of files
and/or directories on the server.

M Yes . ' Standard
Yes, Unite Us tests and employs continuous vulnerablEty monKoring to protect

against unauthorized access and the threats described in T1.11.

T.1.12

For web applications, ensure the application has

been tested and hardened to prevent critical

applicationsecurityfiaws. (At a minimum, the

application shall be tested against an fiaws outlined

in the Open Web Application Security Project

(OWASP) Top Ten
(http://www.cwasp.org/Index.php/OWASP_Top_T

en_ProJect).

M Yes Standard
Yes, wc employ continuous vulnerability monitoring, and the web application is
tested against all flaws outSned in the OWASP Top Ten.

T1.13

Provide the State with validation of 3rd party

security reviews -performed on the application and

system environment. The review may include a

combination of vulnerability scanning, penetration

testing, static analysis of the source code, and

expert code review (please spedfy propose

methodology in the comments field).

M Yes Standard

Unite Us engages independent, third-party auditors annually to condua audit
evaluations of third-party security frameworks, such as SOC 2 and HFTRUST. with the

scope of those audits extended to Include HIPAA. Unite Us also conducts penetration
testing of the environment at least annually. We also engage an independent, third-

party auditor at least annually to ensure that al systems, processes, procedures, and
structures comply with best practkss in accordance with HIPAA compliance

requirements.

T1.14

Prior to the System being moved into production,

the Vendor shall provide results of all security

testing to the Department of Information

Technology for review and acceptance.
M Yes Standard

Confirmed. Unite Us will provide results of security testing to the Departmient of IT
forreviewand acceptance prior to launch.
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T1.15

Vendor shall provide documented procedure for
mieratlng application modifications from the User

Acceptance Test Environment to the Production

Environment.

-  M Yes Standard

Confirmed. As part of our standard Implementation process. Unite Us provides a
project plan that includes the documented procedure (or transltlonlng from UAT to
production.

VNOARD TEST!VG

T2.1

The Vendor must test the software and the system

using an industry standard and State approved

testing methodology.

M Yes Standard

Unite Us tests our software using an Industry standard methodology end will align
with the state on approved testing methodolo^. Stress and volume testing b done
via a variety of toob. Including JMeter, to ensure all features perform sufficiently for
ojirent production loads and 10-209( increase In demand. Furthermore, Unite Us
participates In annual penetration testing. Including stress testing and continues to

prove that the elastic architecture ofthe Platform can scale horbontaltyto meet
peak and epbodic performance demands to maintain a constant user experience.

Tia

The Vendor must perform application stress testing

and tuning. -

M • Yes ■ Standard

features perforrn suffio'entiy for current production leads and 10-20% Increase In

demand. Furthermore. Unite Us participates ki annual penetration testing, including

stress testing and contiriues to prove that the elastic architecture of the Platform caci
scale horltontally to meet peak and epbodic performance demands to maintain a .

T2.3

The Vendor must provide documented procedure

for how to sync Production with a specific testing

environment.

M Yes Standard
Unite Us has a documented procedure for how to sync testing and production and
wiQ provide such documentation upon request

T2.4

The vendor must define and test disaster recovery

procedures. M Yes . Standard

Unite Us maintains and tesu robust and regularly updated tKislness continuity,

backup, dbaster recovery, and support plans and protocob and can provide thb
docurnentation upon request. The BCOR plan b reviewed and tested at least annuatly
hvathlrri^artv auditor
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NGrgLpyb:fiEiaiRi
;-y 'State Riequiremep^ .V •" • -f

J}\ 1 •» *
•V ;.veridoiS. -W :'^f?'

"FReq:#^ ^  -.iVi --i" Ixr.
^ r/'tRequirement-D^cription - r-s

.Fa . v-^'I-'• - <•,. ■<

_  Vendor?;,
. : Respbnse;.V<:

Delivery.
Method' i,,

OPERAflONS j.\'- %■. . •> " if. . '/Ir:
>. <

Hl.l

Vendor shall provide an ANSI/TIA-
942 Tier 3 Data Center 'or

equivalent A tier 3 data center
requires 1) Multiple independent
distribution paths serving the IT
equipment, 2) All IT equipment
must be dual-powered and fully
compatible with the topology of a
site's architecture and

3)Concurrently maintainable site
infrastructure with expected
availability of 99.9829^.

M Yes Standard

♦  ̂ •

Our Platform is'a fully managed, cloud-hosted, SaaS solution
hosted on AWS, which meets or exceeds ANSI/TlA-942 Tier 3 Data

Center standards

H1.2.

Vendor shall maintain a secure

hosting environment providing all
necessary hardware, software, and
Internet bandwidth to manage the
application and support users with
permission based logins.

M Yes Standard

The Unite Us Platform is a fully managed, cloud-hosted, SaaS
solution hosted on AWS. The only technical access requirements
are an internet-connected device that runs a modern browser.

[fA
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H1.3

The Data Center must be physically

secured restricted access to the

site to personnel with controls such

as biometric, badge, and others

security solutions. Policies for

granting access must be in place

and followed. Access shall only be

granted to those with a need to

perform tasks'ln the Data Center.
M Yes Standard

Our Platform Is a fully managed, cloud-hosted, SaaS solution

hosted on AWS. Physical access is controlled at building ingress

points by professional security staff utilizing surveillance,

detection systems, and other electronic means. Authorized staff

utilize multi-factor authentication mechanisms to access data

centers. Entrances to server rooms are secured with devices that

sound alarms to initiate an incident response If the door is forced

or held open. AWS provides physical data center access only to

approved employees. All employees who need data center access

must first apply for access and provide a valid business

justification. These requests are granted based on the principle of

least privilege, where requests must specify to which layer of the

data center the individual needsaccess, and are time-bound.

Requests are reviewed and approved by authorized personnel,

and access Is revoked after the requested time expires. Once

granted admittance, individuals are restricted to areas specified

in their permissions.

H1.4

Vendor shall Install and. update all

server patches, updates, and other

utilities within 60 days of release
from the manufacturer.

M Yes Standard

All hosts reside in AWS and have automatic patching enabled.
AWS manages the installation and rollback of patches in the event

of failure. Servers that require a reboot after patch application

are restarted on weekends during specified maintenance

bws
bh

H1.5

Vendor shall monitor System,

security, and application logs.

M Yes Standard

tihuoOs monitoring or tne unite us Kiatrorm is achieved via a

third-party tool, which provides a network-based malware

detection solution by several methods. The file integrity

monitoring detects changes to system binaries,-libraries, and

configuration files. The host activity monitoring detects package

installation and potentially malicious user activity. In addition,

package vulnerability scanning warns of sof^re that could be
ovnInil-oH :

H1.6

Vendor shall manage the sharing of

data resources. M Yes Standard
Unite Us confirms that it is responsible for managing the sharing

of data resources

12/6/2023-
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H1.7

Vendor shall manage dally backups,

off-site data storage, and restore

operations.
M Yes Standard

We backup data hourly, with a daily snapshot, and have

implemented automated monitoring and alerting in case a

backup fails. We test backups and use standard toolsets to verify
backups. Databases are clustered and replication happens across

the cluster. Data is then backed up across different data centers.

H1.8

The Vendor shall monitor physical

hardware.
M Yes Standard

Our Platform is a fully managed, cloud-hosted, SaaS solution

hosted on AWS. AWS is responsible for monitoring the servers; no

other hardware Is required for our cloud-hosted solution.

H1.9

Remote access shall be customized

to the State's business application.

In instances where the State

requires access to the application

or server resources not in the DMZ,

the Vendor shall provide remote

desktop connection to the server

through secure protocols such as a

Virtual Private Network (VPN).

M

f: 0:^
Not

proposing
This is not applicable to our cloud-hosted solution.

■i^iSAS^RWCQVER^^^

H2.1

Vendor shall have documented

disaster recovery plans that address
the recovery of lost State data as
well as their own. Systems shall be
architected to meet the defined

recovery needs.

M Yes .Standard

Unite Us maintains and tests robust and regularly updated
business continuity, backup, disaster recovery, and support plans
and protocols and can provide this documentation upon request;
The BCDR plan is reviewed and tested at least annually by a third
party auditor.

/—OS
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H2.2

The disaster recovery plan shall

Identify appropriate methods for

procuring additional hardware In

the event of a component fall.ure.

in most Instances, systems shall

offer a level of redundancy so the

loss of a drive or power supply will

not be sufficient to terminate

services however, these failed

components will have to be

replaced.

M Yes Standard

Yes, the BCDR plan accounts for hardware and cpmponent

failures and identlHes appropriate redundancies to address any

potential failures.

H2.3

Vendor shall adhere to a defined

and documented'back-up schedule

and procedure. M  • Yes Standard

We backup data hourly, with a dally snapshot, and have

implemented automated monitoring and alerting in case a

backup falls. Databases are clustered and replication happens

across the cluster. Data Is then backed up across different data

cpnfprs.

H2.4 •

Back-up copies of data are made

for the purpose of facilitating a

restore of the data in the event of

data lojs or System failure.

M Yes Standard Confirmed. See H2.3.

H2.S

Scheduled backups of all servers

must be completed regularly. The

minimum acceptable frequency Is

differential backup daily, and

complete backup weekly.

M .  Yes Standard

*

We have implemented automated, complete backups that

happen daily.

H2.6

Tapes or other back-up media tapes

must be securely transferred from

the site to another secure location

to avoid complete data, loss with

the loss of a facility.

M Yes Standard

Unite Us is a cloud-based platform with two data centers/a

prlrhary and a backup: No physical removable media devices are

used in the backup process.

D8

Ta
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H2.7

Data recovery - In the event that

recovery back to the last backup Is

not sufficient to recover State Data,

the Vendor shall employ the use of

database logs in addition to backup
media in the restoration of the

database(s) to afford a much closer

to real-time recovery. To do this,

logs must be moved off the volume

containing the database with a

frequency to match the business

needs.

M Yes Standard Yes, Unite Us supports this recovery process.

H3.1 If State data is hosted on multiple

servers, data exchanges between

and among servers must be

encrypted.

M Yes Standard Data is encrypted at rest and in transit on both our primary and
backup AWS server. In transit, data is transmitted using TLS 1.3

certificates with 256-bit encryption.

H3.2 All components of the •

infrastructure shall be reviewed

and tested to ensure they protect

the State's hardware, software, and

its related data assets. Tests shall

focus on the technical,

administrative and physical security

controls that have been designed

into the System architecture in

order to provide confidentiality,

integrity and availability.

M Yes Standard Yes, Unite Us supports review and testing as necessary to

demonstrate the technical, administrative, and physical controls

of our System architecture.

H3.3 All servers and devices must have

event logging enabled.. Logs must

be protected with access limited

to only authorized administrators.

Logs shall include System,

Application, Web and Database

logs.

M Yes Standard Confirmed. All servers and devices have logging enabled. Log

access Is limited to only authorized administrators and include

System, Application, Web and Database logs.

n
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H3.4 Operating Systems (OS) artd

Databases (DB) shall be built and

hardened in'accordance with

guidelines set forth by CIS, NISI or

NSA.

M Yes Standard Unite Us employs a hardened OS image for use within the

confines of our cloud infrastructure in accordance with NIST.

sERWcE'i^EL'AGRE^^ " %*'

H4.1 The Vendo/'s System support and
maintenance shall commence upon

the Effective Date and extend

through the end of the Contract

term, and any extensions thereof.

M Yes Standard Confirmed. Unite Us support and maintenance are available

immediately on the Effective Date and extend through the end of

the Contract term or any extensions thereof.

H4.2 The vendor shall maintain the

hardware and Software in

accordance with the specifications,

terms, and requirements of the

Contract; including.providing,

upgrades and fixes as required.

M Yes Standard Confirmed.

H4.3 The vendor shall repair or replace

the hardware or software, or any

portion thereof, so that the System

operates in accordance with the '

Specifications, terms, and.

requirements of the Contract.

M Yes Standard Confirmed.

—DS
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H4.4 All hardware and software

components of the Vendor hosting

Infrastructure shall be fully

supported by their respective '

manufacturers at all times. All

critical patches for operating

systems, databases, web services,

etc., shall be applied within sixty

(60) days of release by their

respective rnanufacturers.

Yes Standard Confirmed.

H4.5 The State shall have unlimited •

access, via phone or Email, to the

Vendor technical support staff

between the hours of 8;30am to

5:00pm- Monday through Friday

EST.

M Yes Standard Confirmed. The Unite Us Support Team Is available from 8:00 am

to 11:00 pm Eastern, Monday through Friday to offer technical
assistance and support to software users.

Live-Chat and Email Support

The quickest and easiest way for users to reach out to the Support
Operations team is through our support chat interface from 8:00

am to 11:00 pm Eastern. Additionally, any emails sent through

our-designated support team email address are routed to the
Support Operations team to triage.

Call Center

Users'can also call a support phone number from 8:30 am to 5:00

pm Eastern, Monday through Friday, which is answered by the

Unite Us Support team.

If software users have questions outside of business hours, they

can send a message via email or the live<hat system and a

OS

n
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H4.6 The Vendor shall conform to the

specific deficiency class as

described: o Oass A Deficiency -
Software - Critical, does not allow

System to operate, ho work

around, demands immediate

action; Written Documentation -

missing significant portionis of

information or unintelligible to

State; Non Software - Services were

inadequate and require re>

performance of the Service,

o  Class B Deficiency - Software

important, does not stop operation

and/or there is a work around and.

user can perform tasks; Written '

Documentation - portions of

information are missing but not

enough to make the document

unlnteillgible; Non Software -

Services were deficient, require

reworking, but do not require re-

performance of the Service,

o Class C Deficiency - Software -

minimal, cosmetic In nature,

minimal effect on System, low

priority and/or user can use

System; Written Documentation ♦
minimal changes required and of
minnr pHiting nafiirp- Nnn Snftwarp

M Yes Standard Confirmed.

—DS
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H4.7 As part of the maintenance

agreement ongoing support issues

shall be responded to according to

the following:

a. Class A Deficiencies - The Vendor

shall have available to the State on-

call telephone assistance, with

issue tracking available to the State,

eight {8) hours per day and five (5)

days a week with an email /

telephone response within two (2)

hours of request; or the Vendor

shall provide support on-site or

with remote diagnostic Services,

within four {4} business hours of a

request;

b. Class B & C Deficiencies -The

State shall notify the Vendor of

such Deficiencies during regular

business hours and the Vendor

shall respond back within four (4)

hours of notification of planned

corrective action; The Vendor shall

repair or replace Software, and

provide maintenance of the

Software in accordance with the

Specifications, Terms and

Requirements of the Contract.

M Yes Standard Confirmed. This aligns with our standard maintenance and

support.

H4.8 The hosting server for the State

shall be available twenty-four (24)

hours a day, 7 days a'week except

for during scheduled maintenance.

iyi Yes Standard Confirmed.

/—09
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H4.9 A regularly scheduled maintenance

window shall be identified (such as

weekly, monthly, or quarterly) at

which time all relevant server

patches and application upgrades

shall be applied.

M Yes Standard Confirmed. Scheduled maintenance takes place with advance

notice only on the weekends or between the hours of 9:00 pm

and 6:00 am Eastern, Monday through Friday.

H4.10 If The Vendor is unable to meet the

uptime requirement. The Vendor

shall credit State's account in an

amount based upon the following

formula: (Total Contract Item

Prlce/365} x Number of Days

Contract Item Not Provided. The

State must request this credit in

writing.

M Yes Standard Confirmed.

H4.11 The Vendor shall use a change

management policy for notification

and tracking of change requests as

well as critical outages.

M Yes Standard Confirmed. Unite Us has a.robust change management process

that includes policies for notification and tracking of change

requests, and employs Internal tools to monitor and track critical

outages.

H4.12 A critical, outage will be designated

when a business function cannot be

met by a nonperforming

application and there is no work

around to the problem.

M Yes Standard Confirmed. . .

ll/Q/202^
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.H4.13 The Vendor shall maintain a record

of the activities related to repair or

maintenance activities performed

for the State and shall report

quarterly on the following: Server

up-time; All change requests

Implemented, including operating

system patches; All critical outages

reported including actual issue and

resolution; Number of deficiencies

reported by class with initial

response time as well as time to

close.

M Yes Standard Confirmed. Unite Us has the tools required to and can provide

this quarterly report.

H4.14 The Vendor will give two-business

days prior notification to the State

Project Manager of all

changes/updates and provide the

State with training due to the

upgrades and changes.

.M Yes Standard Confirmed.

—03
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State RequiremVn^ "v
^  Jv

:  '.

i  '^Requi^emeri^jesdi^lp^
^  %

r Crf&lttil Vendor ;

' .'Responsert

Delivery

Method'

A'* ht - SUPPORT&_MAINTENANCERBQUIREMENTS. . S~. > h-J- .-.Ir -

Sl.l

The Vendor's System support and

maintenance shall commence upon

the Effective Date and extend

through the end of the Contract

term, and anv extensions thereof

M  * Yes Standard Confirmed. See H4.1.

S1.2

Maintain the hardware and Software

in accordance with the Specifications,

terms, and requirements of the

Contract, Including providing,

upgrades and fixes as required.

M • Yes Standard Confirmed. See H4.2.

S1.3

Repair Software, or any portion

thereof, so that the System operates

in accordance with the Specifications,

terms, and requirements of the

Contract.

M Yes Standard Confirmed. See H4.3. •

S1.4

The State shall have unlimited access,

via phone or Email, to the Vendor

technical support staff between the

hours of 8:30am to 5;00pm- Monday

through Friday EST.

M Yes Standard
The Unite Us User Support team Is available for chat/email support

from 8:00am to 11:00pm Monday through Friday EST. ■

/—08
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Sl.S

The Vendor response time for

support shaii conform to the specific

deficiency class as described below or

as agreed to by the parties:

o  Class A Deficiency - Software' -

Critical, does not allow System to

operate, no work around, demands

Immediate action; Written

Documentation - missing significant

portions of information or

unintelligible to State; Non Software -

Services were inadequate and

require re-performance of the

Serviced

0  • Class 8 Deficiency - Software -

important, does not stop operation

and/or there Is a work around and

user can perform tasks; Written

Documentation - portions of

information are missing but not

enough to make the document

unintelligible; Non Software - .

Services were deficient, require

reworking, but do not require re-

performance of the Service.

0 Class C Deficiency • Software -

minimal, cosmetic in nature, minirhal

effect on System, low priority and/or

user can use System; Written

Documentation - minimal changes

M Yes Standard Confirmed. See H4.6.

—03
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S1.6

The Vendor shall make available to

the State the latest program updates,

general maintenance releases,

selected functionality releases,

patches, and Documentation that are

generally offered to its-customers, at

no additional cost.

•  M Yes Standard

Confirmed. Our Platform is a fully-managed, multi-tenant, single

instance, SaaS platform and updates, releases, patches and
Documentation are made available to the State at th$ same time

they are offered to our customer base, at no additional cost.

S1.7

For all maintenance Services calls.

The Vendor shall ensure the

following Information will be

collected and maintained: 1) nature

of the Deficiency; 2) current status of

the Deficiency; 3) action plans, dates,

and times; 4} expectedand actual

completion time; 5) Deficiency

resolution information, 6) Resolved

by, 7} Identifying number i.e. work
order number, 8) Issue identified by;

P Yes Standard

both the nature of the issue and user-specific information Is

collected. Inclusive of the user's browser and operating system

Information and steps taken by the user to produce the Issue. Upon

filing the issue internally, our technical team uniquely

labels/numbers the reported issue, creates a mitigation plan, tracks

the status of work being done on the issue, estimates time to .

completion, and then logs updates as the Product and Engineering

teams remedy the reported deficiency.

Users that report deficiencies receive confirmation that the issue has

been reported and subsequent updates relevant to a fix being
.-.1 — j

51.8

The Vendor must work with the State

to identify and troubleshoot

potentially large-scale System failures

or Deficiencies by collecting the

following information; 1) mean time

betvveen reported Deficiencies with

the Software; 2) diagnosis of the root

cause of the problem; and 3)

identification of repeat calls or

repeat Software problems.

P Yes Standard Conflmied,

■rDS
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S1.9

As part of the Software maintenance

agreement, ongoing software

maintenance and support Issues,

shall be responded to according to

the following or as agreed to by the

parties:

a. Class A Deficiencies - The Vendor

shall have available to the State on-

call telephone assistance, with issue

tracking available to the State, eight

(8) hours per day and five (5) days a

week with an email / telephone

response within two (2) hours of

request; or the Vendor shall provide

support on-site or with remote

diagnostic Services, within four (4)

business hours of a request;

b. Class B & C Deficiencies -The State

shall notify the Vendor of such

Deficiencies during regular business

hours arid the Vendor shall respond

back within four (4) hours of

notification of planned corrective

action; The Vendor shall repair or

replace Software, and provide

maintenance of the Software In

accordance with the Specifications,

Terms and Requirements of the

M Yes Standard Confirmed. This aligns with our standard maintenance and support

Sl.lO

The Vendor shall use a change

management policy for notification

and tracking of change requests as

well as critical outages. '

M Yes Standard

Confirmed. Unite Us has a robust change management process that

Includes policies for notification and tracking of change requests, and

employs internal tools to monitor and track critical outages.

— D5
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Sl.ll

A critical outage will be designated

when a business function cannot be

met by a nonperformtng application

and there is no work around to the

problem.

m' Yes Standard Confirmed.

S1.12

The Vendor shall maintain a record of

the activities related to repair or

maintenance artivltles performed for

the State and shail report quarterly

on the following: Ali change requests

implemented; All critical outages

reported including actual issue and

resolution; Number of deficiencies

reported by class with initial

response time as well as time to

close.

M ■ Yes ■■ Standard
Confirmed. Unite Us has the tools required to and can provide this.

quarterly report.'

S1.13

A regularly scheduled maintenance

window shall be identified (such as

weekly, monthly, or quarterly) at

which time all relevant server

patches and application upgrades

shall be applied.

M Yes Standard

Confirmed. Scheduled maintenance takes place with advance notice
only on the weekends or between the hours of 9:00 pm and 6:00 am

Eastern, Monday through Friday.

SI. 14

The Vendor shall give two-business

days prior notification to the State

Project Manager of all

changes/updates and provide the

State with training due to the
unpradps and rhanpps

M Yes Standard

Confirmed. Unite Us releases on a set cadence, and customers are

notified at a minimum of two business days prior to a release going
live. The only exception to this would be for an critical issue that

requires an immediate push to production.

SI. 15

The State shall provide the Vendor

with a personal secure FTT> site to be

used by the State for uploading and

downloading files If applicable.

M

-i-r1r»v • . •r.u.L'i

^ ^
Not

Available/

Not

Proposing

Not applicable to this proposal. If the state requires the use of an

SFTP site for any reason Unite Us is happy to use that portal.

12/6/2023
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51.15

The Vendor shall give two-business

days prior notification to the State

Project Manager of all

changes/updates and provide the

5tate with training due to the

M Yes Standard Confirmed. See SI,14.

51.16

The State shall provide the Vendor

with a personal secure FTP site to be

used by the State for uploading and

downloading files If applicable.

M

iM"- ic®

Not

Available/

Not

Proposing

Not applicable to this proposal. If the state requires the use of an
SFTP site for any reason Unite Us Is happy to use that portal.

51.17

The hosting server for the State shall

be available twenty-four (24) hours a

day, 7 days a week except for during

scheduled malnteriance.

M Yes Standard Confirmed. See H4.8.

Si.18

The Contractor will guide the State

with possible solutions to resolve .

issues to maintain a fully functioning,

hosted Svstem.

M Yes Standard
Confirmed. This aligns with ourstandard support and maintenance

processes.

/—08
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State Requirements- .vi ■* Vendor) ' •.>

• Reqifc' -••Jl-:..-- ' R^Ql^CernentDesdip^on^-.^'.-^S^-';^ • Vendor • •.
' Ries^hse ;

'peih/ery^
'lyiethodj

lap.. ^

PROJECT MANAGEMENT'- : ^ '"S" ' ;  • T-. .V,
.  ■ - ..v.* ' • - • .1 .-v

Pl.l

Vendor shall participate In an initial kick-off meeting to initiate the
Project. .M Yes Standard -

P1.2
Vendor shall provide Project Staff as spedfied in the RFP.

M Yes Standard

P1.3

vendor shall submit a fmaiited worK Plan within ten (lU) days after

Contract award and approval by Governor and Council. The Work '
Plan.shall include, without limitation, a.detalled description of the
Schedule, tasks. Deliverables, milestones/critical events, task
dependencies, vendors and state resources required and payment
Schedule.

M Yes . Standard To be built in partnership with DHHS

P1.4

Vendor shall provide detailed bi-weekly status reports on the
progress of the Project, which will Include expenses iricurred year
to date.

M Yes Standard

P1.5

All user, technical, and System Documentation as well as Project
Schedules, plans, status reports, and correspondence, must be
maintained as project documentation.

M yes Standard
•

P1.6
Vendor shall provide a full time Project Manager assigned to the
oroiect.

M .  NO; Standard Leveraging existing staff capacity

P1.7

The Vendor Project Manager, and relevant key staff, shall every
three (3) months, beginning in the.first month of the Contract,
travel to Concord, NH to meet with project representatives from
DHHSand the NHID to review past quarter performance and
upcoming quarter Plan of Operations. Virtual meetings may be
permitted if approved by DHHS.

M Yes. Standard
-

P1.8

The Vendor's project manager is also expected to host other
important meetings, assign contractor staff to those meetings as
aoorooriate and orovlde an aaenda for each meetine.

M" ■ Yes Standard
.

12/6/2023
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P1.9

Meeting minutes will be documented and maintained electronically

by the contractor and distributed within 24 hours after the

meeting. Key decisions along with Closed, Active and Pending

issues will be Included In this document as well.

M Yes Standard
•

PI. 10
The Project Manager must participate in all other State, provider,

and stakeholder meetings as requested bv the State.
M Yes Standard

•

Pl.ll

f-or the tirst tnree IJ; months or the Lontraa, the vendor shall

provide written progress reports, to be submitted to DHHS"every
two (2) weeks. The reports should be keyed to the Implementation

portion of the Plan of Operations and Include, at a minimum, an

assessment of progre^ made, difficulties encountered,

recommendations for addressing the problems, and changes

M Yes Standard

P1.12

For the fourth through eighth month of the Contract, the Vendor

shall provide a bi-monthly report of the status of progress, it must

be received by the tenth business day of the following month. • This

report must be tied to the performance section of the Plan of '

Operations and contain at least the following information:

*  M Yes Standard

•

—0$
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